
�
�

v1�2014�

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� Housing�Committee�

Date� Tuesday�11�November�2014�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall,�The�
Queen's�Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/housing�
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair)�
Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Andrew�Boff�AM�
Nicky�Gavron�AM�

Stephen�Knight�AM�
Steve�O'Connell�AM�
Murad�Qureshi�AM�

�

A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chair�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�business�
listed�below.��

Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�
Monday�3�November�2014�

�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�David�Pealing,�Committee�Officer;�Telephone:�020�7983�5525;��
Email:�david.pealing@london.gov.uk.�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�London�Assembly�External�Relations�on�020�7983�4283.��If�you�
have�any�questions�about�individual�items�please�contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�the�end�of�
the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Housing�Committee�
Tuesday�11�November�2014�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interest�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�David�Pealing,�david.pealing@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�5525�
�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a)��� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�set�out�in�the�tables�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;�

�

(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�

Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and�

�

(c)��� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�

which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�

of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�

Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�any�necessary�action�taken�by�the�

Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�
�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�46)�
�

� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�held�on�

16�October�2014�to�be�signed�by�the�Chair�as�a�correct�record.�

� The�appendix�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�11�to�46�are�attached�for�Members�and�officers�

only�but�are�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�

www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/housing��

�

�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�47�-�48)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�David�Pealing,�david.pealing@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�5525�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�outstanding�actions�arising�from�

previous�meetings�of�the�Committee.�



�

4�
�

5 London�Housing�Strategy�(Pages�49�-�50)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Simon�Shaw;�scrutiny@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�6542�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�report�as�background�to�putting�

questions�to�invited�guests�on�the�London�Housing�Strategy.�
�
�

6 Affordable�Home�Ownership�in�London�(Pages�51�-�54)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Ian�O’Sullivan;�scrutiny@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�6540�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�the�broad�scope�for�its�review�of�affordable�home�ownership�in�London�

as�outlined�at�paragraphs�4.2�to�4.4�of�the�report;�and��

�

(b) Agree�to�delegate�authority�to�the�Chair,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�

Lead�Members,�to�agree�the�final�scoping�paper�and�terms�of�reference�for�the�

investigation�into�affordable�home�ownership�in�London�in�advance�of�the�

December�meeting�of�the�Committee.��
�
�

7 Housing�Committee�Work�Programme�(Pages�55�-�56)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Lorraine�Ford;�scrutiny@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4394�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�its�work�programme.�
�
�

8 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Housing�Committee�is�scheduled�for�2�December�2014�at�10.00�am�

in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�
�
�

9 Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�
�

�



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v3/2014�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Housing
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
11
November
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications



4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�




Page 3



        

5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� David�Pealing,�Committee�Officer�

Telephone:� 020�7983�5525�
E-mail:� david.pealing@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk�

MINUTES

�

Meeting:
 Housing
Committee

Date:
 Thursday
16
October
2014

Time:
 2.00
pm

Place:
 Chamber,
City
Hall,
The
Queen's


Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/housing�




�
Present:

�
Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair)�
Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Tony�Arbour�AM�
John�Biggs�AM�
Nicky�Gavron�AM�
Stephen�Knight�AM�
Steve�O'Connell�AM�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1 Apologies�for�absence�were�received�from�Andrew�Boff�AM,�for�whom�Tony�Arbour�AM�

substituted;�and�Murad�Qureshi�AM,�for�whom�John�Biggs�AM�substituted.�





2 Declarations
of
Interest
(Item
2)�




2.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

2.2� As�it�had�not�at�the�time�been�included�in�the�Authority’s�Register�of�Gifts�and�Hospitality,�

Tom�Copley�AM�declared�that�he�had�attended�by�invitation�the�British�Film�Institute’s�

Centrepiece�Gala�on�14�October�2014.�

�

�

�

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Housing
Committee


Thursday
16
October
2014


�

�
�

�

2.3� Resolved:





(a) That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
at


Item
2,
be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests;
and




(b) That
the
declaration
made
by
Tom
Copley
AM
of
the
receipt
of
hospitality
at


the
British
Film
Institute’s
Centrepiece
Gala
be
noted.






3 Changes
to
the
Committee's
Membership
(Item
3)�




3.1
 Resolved:





That
the
changes
to
the
Committee’s
membership,
as
agreed
by
the
London


Assembly
at
its
Plenary
meeting
on
the
16
July
2014,
be
noted
as
follows:





That
Murad
Qureshi
AM
replaces
Fiona
Twycross
AM
as
a
Member
of
the


Committee;
and





That
Fiona
Twycross
AM
replaces
Murad
Qureshi
AM
as
a
substitute
Member
of


the
Committee.






4 Minutes
(Item
4)�




4.1� Resolved:





That
the
minutes
of
the
meeting
held
on
10
July
2014
be
signed
by
the
Chair
as
a


correct
record.






5 Summary
List
of
Actions
(Item
5)�




5.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

5.2� Resolved:





That
the
completed
actions
arising
from
a
previous
meeting
of
the
Committee
be


noted.





5.3� In�accordance�with�Standing�Order�2.2(D),�the�Chair�announced�he�was�to�take�the�remaining�

business�in�a�different�order�than�that�set�out�on�the�agenda.




Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Housing
Committee


Thursday
16
October
2014


�

�
�

�

6 Clapham
Park
Estate
Site
Visit
(Item
7)�



6.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

6.2� Resolved:






 That
the
record
of
the
site
visit
to
the
Clapham
Park
estate
on
2
July
2014
be
noted.






7 Encouraging
Diversity
in
London's
House
Building
Industry
(Item
8)�




7.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

7.2� Resolved:






 That
both
the
letter
sent
by
the
Chair
of
the
Committee
to
the
Mayor
about


encouraging
diversity
in
London’s
house
building
industry,
and
the
Mayor’s


response,
be
noted.






8 Rough
Sleeping
and
Single
Homelessness
(Item
9)�




8.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

8.2� The�Committee�Officer�informed�Members�that�since�the�report�had�been�agreed�originally�by�

the�Chair�under�delegated�authority,�an�alteration�had�been�made�to�the�case�study�on�page�

21�following�consultation�with�the�Chair.��This�change�was�deemed�not�be�substantive.�

�

8.3
 Resolved:





(a) That
the
Committee’s
report
No
Going
Back:
Breaking
the
Cycle
of
Rough


Sleeping
and
Homelessness,
as
agreed
by
the
Chair
under
delegated
authority,


be
noted;
and





(b) That
the
responses
from
the
Lord
Freud,
Minister
for
Welfare
Reform,
and
Kris


Hopkins
MP,
Minister
for
Homelessness,
to
the
relevant
recommendations
in


No
Going
Back
be
noted.






9 Response
to
Assessing
the
Consequences
of
Welfare
Reform
Report


(Item
10)�



9.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

Housing
Committee


Thursday
16
October
2014


�

�
�

�

9.2� Resolved:





That
the
response
from
the
Mayor
to
the
Committee’s
report,
Assessing
the


Consequences
of
Welfare
Reform,
be
noted.






10 Housing
Committee
Work
Programme
(Item
11)�




10.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

10.2� Resolved:






 That
the
adjustment
to
the
Committee’s
Work
Programme,
as
set
out
at
paragraphs


4.1
to
4.3
of
the
report
at
Agenda
Item
11,
be
agreed.






11 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
12)�




11.1� The�next�meeting�was�scheduled�for�11�November�2014�in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�





12 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
13)�




12.1� There�was�no�urgent�business.�





13 Gypsy
and
Traveller
Site
Provision
in
London
(Item
6)�




13.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

receiving�comments�from�members�of�the�public.���

�

13.2� A�transcript�of�the�exchange�between�the�Committee�and�members�of�the�public�is�attached�at�

Appendix
1.�

�

13.3� At�the�conclusion�of�the�discussion�from�the�floor,�the�Committee�put�questions�to�the�following�

invited�panel�guests:�

• Rob�McCartney,�Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council;�

• Bill�Forrester,�Head�of�Service,�Kent�County�Council;�

• Ilinca�Diaconescu,�Planning�Policy,�London�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit;�

• John�Lett,�Strategic�Planning�Manager,�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA);�

• Gill�Slater,�Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley;�and�

Page 8



Greater
London
Authority

Housing
Committee


Thursday
16
October
2014


�

�
�

�

• Jamie�Ratcliff,�Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA.�

�

13.4� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�between�the�Committee�and�panellists�is�attached�at�

Appendix
2.� �

�

13.5� During�the�session,�Gill�Slater�committed�to�provide�Members�with�the�criteria�used�by�the�

London�Borough�of�Bromley�to�determine�waiting�list�priority�order�for�traveller�pitches.�

�

13.6� Resolved:






 That
the
report
and
discussion
be
noted.






14 Close
of
Meeting�



14.1� The�meeting�ended�at�4.28�pm.�





�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chair�� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 David�Pealing,�Committee�Officer�

Telephone:�020�7983�5525;�Email:�david.pealing@london.gov.uk.�
�
�

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

�

Appendix 1 
�

Housing�Committee�-�16�October�2014�
Transcript�of�Item�6:�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Site�Provision�in�London�

First�Session�
�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Our�main�item�of�business�is�Gypsy�and�Traveller�provision.��The�session�is�

going�to�be�in�two�parts.��We�are�going�to�have�an�open�discussion�first�with�contributions�from�the�floor.��Do�

keep�those�brief�so�that�we�can�try�to�fit�as�many�people�in�as�possible.��Then�we�will�move�on�to�a�panel�

discussion�with�our�guests.��We�will�have�roving�microphones�going�around.�

�

Can�I�just�start�off,�then?��How�well�is�London�doing�in�terms�of�accommodating�the�needs�of�the�Gypsy�and�

Traveller�communities�in�London�and�what�needs�to�be�done?��We�will�take�a�contribution�there�first.��If�you�

can�say�briefly�where�you�are�from�and�your�name,�that�will�help�us�as�well.��Thank�you.�

�

Marian�Mahoney�(from�the�floor):��My�name�is�Mrs�Marian�Mahoney.��I�was�living�at�Eleanor�Street�-�it�is�

now�called�Old�Willow�Close.��I�am�a�Gypsy�Traveller.�

�

I�have�been�an�activist�all�my�life�and�my�experience�is�the�Mayor�never�put�any�targets�for�Gypsy�sites�in�

Tower�Hamlets�in�the�London�Plan�and�it�was�supposed�to�be�that�it�was�sent�down�to�the�councils.��The�

councils�just�do�not�seem�to�be�doing�anything�whatsoever�about�it.��Actually,�on�our�waiting�list,�there�are�25�

people�at�the�moment,�who�have�been�there�for�the�last�three�years.��There�are�other�children�coming�up�on�

our�sites�who�will�need�homes,�which�will�probably�come�to�another�25.��There�is�no�provision�for�them.�

�

All�over�London,�there�has�been�no�provision�made�for�Gypsy�and�Traveller�sites�for�the�last�20�years.��From�my�

experience�as�an�activist,�I�feel�that�we�have�been�just�left�out�of�everything.��When�they�can�find�room�for�

garages,�Tesco,�Morrisons,�whatever�they�want�to�find�room�for,�they�can.��I�cannot�understand�why�my�

children�cannot�have�a�home�the�same�as�anybody�else.��When�they�build�houses�in�London,�they�plan�for�how�

many�people�they�need�houses�for.��There�is�nothing�at�all�for�Gypsies�and�Travellers.��I�feel�my�family�has�been�

left�out�in�the�cold�as�well�as�everybody�else�in�the�Traveller�and�Gypsy�communities.��There�does�not�seem�to�

be�any�future�for�us�and�I�feel�that�at�this�moment�it�is�like�we�do�not�exist.��As�far�as�I�am�concerned,�we�are�

just�outsiders�and�we�do�not�really�have�any�availability�for�us.�

�

Actually,�my�children�are�ending�up�going�into�houses�and�reversing�their�roles�from�being�Travellers�and�going�

into�houses.��There�is�no�room�on�the�site�at�the�moment�for�them.��There�are�25�people�on�the�waiting�list�and�

there�are�six�pitches�available.��It�is�causing�havoc�amongst�the�Traveller�and�Gypsy�communities.��It�is�causing�

bad�feeling.��It�is�causing�us�to�lose�our�ethnic�minority�status�and�it�is�also�causing�a�lot�of�people�to�lose�their�

culture.�

�

Our�children�are�going�into�houses�and�some�people�have�been�affected�by�mental�health.��My�own�daughter�

has.��She�has�exchanged�her�home�in�Eleanor�Street�where�she�was�born�and�reared,�which�is�now�Old�Willow�

Close,�and�she�has�ended�up�living�in�a�flat�in�Walthamstow�with�her�children,�with�the�railway�line�just�over�her�

and�the�main�road�outside.��Her�youngest�is�two�and�the�other�one�is�five.��Her�children�have�to�come�all�the�

way�from�Walthamstow�to�school�in�Tower�Hamlets�every�morning.��Our�lives�are�just�devastated.��I�really�feel�

that�the�councils�are�not�doing�anything�whatsoever�for�Gypsy�Travellers.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thanks�for�that.��For�you,�the�top�priority�would�be�the�need�for�identifying�

new�additional�sites?�

Page 11



 

�

Marian�Mahoney�(from�the�floor):��Yes,�provision�and�the�need.��They�do�not�even�look�for�land�for�us.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��That�has�come�across�loudly�and�clearly.��Many�thanks�for�that�contribution.��

Other�contributions�from�anyone�else?���

�

Tracie�Giles�(from�the�floor):��My�name�is�Tracie�Giles�and�I�am�an�English�Romany�Gypsy�and�I�live�in�the�

London�Borough�of�Newham.�

�

I�currently�live�on�one�of�the�relocation�sites�for�the�London�Olympics.��We�were�relocated�in�2007�and�the�site�

we�now�live�on�was�poorly�built.��The�Mayor�gave�a�lot�of�money�to�relocate�us�and�I�do�not�know�in�that�

whole�process�exactly�what�happened,�but�towards�the�end�they�ran�out�of�time�and�the�site�we�are�now�living�

on�is�actually�falling�to�bits�around�us,�literally.��However,�the�Mayor�did�give�a�commitment�to�move�us�back�

to�where�we�originally�were�within�the�Olympic�Park.�

�

In�2011,�residents�were�consulted�on�an�option�but�were�not�told�at�that�time�that�this�was�the�only�option.��

We�were�under�the�illusion�that�there�were�going�to�be�options�and�now�we�have�been�told�that�that�option�

has�now�gone.��It�is�being�used�for�affordable�social�housing�and�allotments�and�whatever.��There�is�no�option�

and�there�is�no�land�to�move�us�back.��We�have�been�left�high�and�dry,�really.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��You�feel�you�are�being�left�stranded�on�a�temporary�site�which�was�never�

intended�as�a�permanent�site?�

�

Tracie�Giles�(from�the�floor):��Yes.��Exactly.��My�second�point�is�about�the�duty�to�co-operate.��The�London�

Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC)�recently�did�its�needs�assessment�for�Gypsies�and�Travellers.��

Parkway�Crescent�is�right�outside�of�the�Olympic�Park�and�they�did�not�consult�and�they�did�not�take�the�

needs�of�the�Gypsies�and�the�Travellers�who�have�been�in�the�borough�for�over�40�years�on�that�site.��They�did�

not�count�the�needs,�let�alone�for�the�rest�of�the�Travellers�who�live�in�the�borough.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that.��Any�other�contributions?�

�

John�Power�(from�the�floor):��My�name�is�John�Power.��I�am�with�the�Camden�Travellers�Association.��My�

wife�and�children�and�I�moved�to�a�place�in�Camden�34�years�ago.��We�have�been�promised�several�places�or�

sites�and�there�was�£700,000�given�to�the�Council,�but�they�said�they�could�not�find�any�land.��We�went�out�

and�we�found�the�land�for�them,�land�that�would�never�be�used�for�building�or�anything.��We�approached�them�

with�this�land�and�they�said�they�would�have�to�go�through�the�owners�and�get�permission�and�things�like�that.��

The�money�was�sent�back.��The�money�did�not�have�to�go�back�until�April�2015,�but�it�has�gone�back�from�

October�2013.�

�

This�law�that�they�are�trying�to�bring�in,�where�people�are�not�allowed�to�get�sites�when�they�are�in�houses,�is�

going�to�destroy�people.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��People�are�moving�into�houses�as�a�temporary�measure�and�then�losing�their�

allocation�rights�for�a�site?�

�

John�Power�(Camden�Travellers�Association):��Yes.��It�is�taking�away�their�culture�from�them.��It�is�like�if�

you�see�country�people�-�we�call�them�‘country�people’�-�settled�people.��If�you�take�away�their�land�for�

vegetable�plots�and�harvesting,�it�is�not�going�to�be�very�nice�for�them.��Some�of�the�Travellers�are�taking�this�

very,�very�hard.�

�

Page 12



 

�

We�have�been�there�now�34�years,�as�I�say,�and�there�has�been�nothing�done�whatsoever.��We�have�tried�

everything�with�the�Council.��We�have�abided�by�everything�they�have�said.��We�have�fitted�in�with�the�

community.��Yet�it�is�no�good.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��That�is�a�really�useful�point.��We�will�definitely�pick�up�some�of�those�issues�

around�funding�later�on�in�the�meeting.��That�was�a�really�useful�contribution.��Thank�you.���

�

Bridy�Purcell�(from�the�floor):��Hello,�I�am�Bridy�Purcell.��Because�there�are�shortages�of�sites,�we�have�now�

been�on�a�tolerated�unauthorised�site�in�Greenwich�for�the�last�15�years,�which�you�all�have�seen.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��We�all�visited�that�site.��We�visited�your�beautiful�mobile,�yes.�

�

Bridy�Purcell�(from�the�floor):��Yes.��Trailer,�by�the�way.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Trailer.��Sorry.�

�

Bridy�Purcell�(from�the�floor):��On�the�site,�we�have�10�adults�and�25�children�and�two�on�the�way.��On�our�

site,�it�is�absolutely�ridiculous.��We�have�been�there�15�years�with�no�showers�and�no�toilets.��We�have�portable�

loos.��The�site�is�literally�a�bombshell.�

�

Just�behind�us�we�have�a�big�tarmac�yard,�at�the�bottom�of�us�is�a�big�waste�factory�and�behind�that�is�a�

cement�factory,�as�you�have�all�seen�yourselves.��The�amount�of�dust�is�unbearable,�literally,�and�the�health�

problems�have�been�very�bad.��My�Granny�went�to�the�doctors�and�they�told�her�she�has�the�lungs�of�someone�

who�has�smoked�for�40�years.��She�has�never�smoked�in�her�life.��All�of�our�children�get�continuous�ear�

infections,�eye�infections�and�everything�because�of�all�the�dust�around�the�camp.�

�

Thankfully,�we�have�very�good�schools�and,�for�all�of�our�children,�we�are�keen�for�them�to�get�an�education.��

All�they�really�need�is�a�proper�place�to�live.��It�is�not�much�to�ask�for�a�bit�of�land�where�we�can�actually�have�

showers�and�maybe�even�a�proper�kitchen�block�because�we�are�all�squashed�in�there.��I�am�17�years�of�age�

and�I�do�not�have�a�trailer.��I�share�a�trailer�with�my�siblings.�

�

We�are�being�deprived�of�a�space�because�we�are�not�getting�any�further�with�the�Council,�really.��It�is�like�we�

are�nothing,�to�be�honest�with�you,�because�we�are�not�getting�any�kind�of�help�in�any�way.��They�sit�there�and�

they�say,�“Next�year,�next�year”.��Where�we�are�now,�as�you�have�all�seen,�the�flats�are�going�up.��We�are�

getting�told�now,�“You�will�not�be�there�for�more�than�two�more�months”.��Where�are�we�going�to�go�after�

that?�

�

There�is�no�such�thing�as�travelling�and�moving�around�anymore�because�we�are�not�allowed�to�do�that.��Our�

cultures�are�being�destroyed,�basically.��If�we�wanted�to�go�and�get�anywhere�to�live,�not�only�would�there�be�

no�planning�permission�to�get�anywhere�to�live,�but�there�is�nowhere�to�go�in�London.��That�is�worst�of�all�for�

us.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much�for�that.��As�I�say,�we�did�visit�your�site�and�saw�

first-hand�what�you�are�having�to�go�through.���

�

Anne�Marie�O’Brien�(from�the�floor):��My�name�is�Anne�Marie�O’Brien�and�I�live�in�Newham�and�I�have�

been�talking�for�Travellers�for�quite�a�long�time�now�in�Newham,�trying�to�get�facilities�for�them�and�trying�to�

get�a�site�built�there,�but�everybody�knows�our�Mayor�in�Newham�and�he�will�probably�be�there�a�long�time.��I�

will�probably�be�dead�and�he�will�still�be�there.��He�does�not�do�anything�for�us.��He�does�not�recognise�us.�

Page 13



 

�

It�is�very�disappointing�to�know�that�we�are�a�culture,�we�are�people,�we�have�our�own�culture�and�we�accept�

every�other�person’s�culture�and�respect�it,�and�we�are�not�respected.��We�are�not�asking�for�much.��We�are�not�

asking,�“Give�us�this.��Give�us�that”.��We�are�well�able�to�look�after�ourselves.��We�are�well�able�to�look�after�

these�sites�and�run�them�properly.��Only�give�us�the�land�and�put�us�into�them.�

�

I�live�in�a�house�and�I�am�blessed�in�the�house,�but�in�the�house�that�I�am�in�we�are�suffering�from�depression�

inside�it�because�I�do�not�have�the�support�of�my�family�for�my�daughters.��My�daughters�have�bipolar.��They�

are�depressed�and�one�of�them�is�suicidal�because�I�am�not�with�my�family.��They�have�put�me�into�a�culture�

that�I�know�nothing�about�and�now�the�National�Health�Service�(NHS)�has�to�pay�the�price�for�it�because�my�

daughters�are�in�counselling,�on�medication�and�everything�you�could�ask�for.��The�NHS�has�to�support�my�

children�now,�all�because�we�are�in�a�society,�in�a�house�and�in�a�community�that�we�know�nothing�about.�

�

It�is�not�that�we�do�not�respect�the�community.��We�do,�but�we�like�our�own�community�and�we�respect�our�

own�way�of�living.��I�do�not�think�that�is�recognised�in�London.��I�do�not�think�it�is�recognised�by�the�councils.��

I�know�for�sure�it�is�not�recognised�in�Newham.��I�know�for�sure�it�is�not�recognised.��All�I�want�is�to�know�why�

is�there�not�a�caravan�waiting�list�in�Newham?��Why�is�someone�in�Newham�not�saying,�“Mrs�O’Brien,�we�can�

call�a�meeting�with�you.��We�will�try”,�not,�“Do�it”,�because�I�am�asking�for�a�miracle,�but�try.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��A�formal�waiting�list�is�needed�and�identifying�sites�and�that�is�essential�to�

sustain�the�culture�of�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�community,�in�your�view?�

�

Anne�Marie�O’Brien�(from�the�floor):��Yes.��They�do�not�have�that�in�Newham.��To�be�honest,�it�is�very�let�

down.��It�is�very,�very�let�down.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Many�thanks�for�that�contribution.���

�

Neil�Pearce�(from�the�floor):��Thank�you.��My�name�is�Neil�Pearce,�Housing�Strategy�Officer�for�the�London�

Borough�of�Barking�&�Dagenham.�

�

We�have�one�permanent�site�in�the�Borough�which�accommodates�11�households.��We�have�a�relatively�small�

Traveller�community�in�the�borough�and�a�waiting�list�of�about�eight,�which�are�of�the�Irish�Traveller�

community.��We�have�tried�over�the�last�two�years�to�identify�an�area�for�a�new�site.��That�has�come�with�its�

own�planning�problems,�of�course,�but�the�big�issue�for�us�is�the�funding�behind�it.��Of�all�the�four�sites,�with�

their�remediation�issues,�etc,�the�model�we�have�come�up�with�is�anything�between�£1.2�million�and�

£3.3�million.��For�a�local�authority�in�this�culture�of�cuts�at�the�moment�to�justify�providing�a�site�on�that�basis�

when�that�amount�of�money�could�also�pay�for�325�adaptations�in�our�borough�is�quite�difficult.�

�

The�way�I�am�trying�to�couch�this�is�that�under�the�Affordable�Homes�Programme�that�the�Greater�London�

Authority�(GLA)�runs,�there�was�some�Traveller�pitch�funding,�but�its�availability�was�very�restricted.��The�

timescale�on�it�seemed�to�be�only�about�two�years.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Barking�&�Dagenham�Council�bid�for�this?�

�

Neil�Pearce�(from�the�floor):��We�bid�for�some�refurbishment�funding�on�our�existing�site,�which�we�got.��

Looking�for�a�new�site�with�all�the�problems�and�political�sensitivities�that�come�with�it,�the�timescale�for�which�

the�GLA�was�offering�money�was�not�--�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Your�argument�is�that�there�were�so�many�strings�attached�and�the�timescale�

was�so�tight�that�it�was�not�practical�to�bid�for�the�money?�

�

Page 14



 

�

Neil�Pearce�(from�the�floor):��--�It�was�not�practical.��I�would�like�to�appeal�to�the�GLA�to�say�that�in�the�

long�term�you�need�to�think�about�providing�funding,�if�you�are�going�to�provide�funding,�that�it�takes�in�the�

longevity�of�those�issues.��It�is�planning,�it�is�political�sensitivities�and�it�is�site�assembly�and�identification,�

which�we�cannot�match�in�that�two-year�gap.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�is�two�years�from�the�date�of�funding�you�have�to�use�it�and�you�cannot�

identify�the�issues�beforehand?�

�

Neil�Pearce�(from�the�floor):��We�came�up�with�a�site�that�we�thought�we�might�be�able�to�progress�with�

recently�and�the�GLA�said,�“Sorry,�the�funding�has�been�withdrawn�now.��There�is�no�more�to�it”.��We�got�over�

two�years’�worth�of�political�sensitivities�to�say,�“We�may�be�on�to�something”,�and�then�it�was�gone.���

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��OK.��We�will�come�on�to�that.��We�are�going�to�discuss�funding�and�we�will�be�

putting�questions�to�our�officers�here�on�the�funding.��At�the�moment,�I�really�want�to�hear�the�contributions�

from�the�floor.�

�

Phil�Regan�(from�the�floor):��Thank�you.��Hi.��My�name�is�Phil�Regan.��I�am�a�volunteer�with�the�Kensington�

and�Chelsea�Social�Council.�

�

My�experience�from�across�London�is�pretty�much�talking�specifically�around�needs�assessment�and�whether�

they�are�an�accurate�projection�for�future�need.��As�we�know,�the�Fordham1�figures�recommended�540�and�

actually�organisations�lobbying�at�the�time�looked�more�at�800�pitches.��From�my�understanding,�we�have�

about�10�pitches�in�London�that�have�been�built�so�far.��Whether�it�reflects�a�need,�the�need�is�still�there.��

There�are�still�those�500�to�800�people�who�need�homes.�

�

To�talk�specifically�around�Kensington�and�Chelsea�and�its�method�of�delivering�its�needs�assessment,�in�

essence,�it�has�been�delayed�as�much�as�possible.��It�has�taken�a�hell�of�a�lot�of�lobbying�from�voluntary�

organisations�as�well�as�supporting�national�Gypsy�and�Traveller�organisations�to�get�the�authorities�to�deliver�a�

needs�assessment.��What�I�would�say�is�that�when�they�first�did�their�needs�assessment,�it�was�a�desk-based�

analysis�which�reduced�the�Fordham�figure�from�12�down�to�2.��They�are�now�doing�a�thorough�needs�

assessment�but�it�is�going�to�be�due�-�surprise,�surprise�-�in�February�next�year.��It�is�great�timing�for�the�next�

election,�which�will�mean�that�nothing�will�happen�next�year.�

�

What�I�would�say�is,�if�you�guys�are�looking�to�do�an�additional�London-wide�needs�assessment,�it�needs�to�

happen�hand-in-hand�with�pitch�development.��Needs�assessments�are�used�by�local�authorities�as�vehicles�to�

stall�actually�building�sites.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��That�is�a�useful�point.���

�

Richard�Lee�(from�the�floor):��My�name�is�Richard�Lee.��I�co-ordinate�a�community�planning�network�called�

Just�Space.��It�is�London-wide.�

�

I�start�by�mentioning�that�we�represent�a�very�wide�variety�of�community�organisations�across�London:�tenants�

groups,�environmental�groups,�communities�of�interest,�amenity�groups�and�also�the�London�Gypsy�and�

Traveller�Unit.��Our�experience�was�that�before�the�London�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit�became�a�member�of�Just�

Space,�a�number�of�the�residents�associations�we�work�with�were�expressing�a�lot�of�anxiety�and�prejudice�

about�the�issue�of�provision�for�Travellers.��As�soon�as�the�London�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit�became�part�of�our�

                                                 
1�London�Boroughs’�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Accommodation�Needs�Assessment,�Fordham�Research,�March�2008�

Page 15



 

�

network�and�Travellers�were�sitting�down�and�having�discussions�and�sharing�experiences�with�other�members�

of�the�community,�the�prejudice�very�quickly�dissolved�and�for�a�number�of�years�now�there�has�been�a�

common�cause�around�the�issue�of�housing�need.�

�

I�mention�that�to�start�with�because�it�seems�to�me�that�some�of�the�reluctance,�shall�we�say,�from�the�

boroughs�is�based�on�perhaps�a�fear�of�a�community�backlash.��Our�experience�actually�is�that�we�can�

overcome�this�and�that�maybe�the�big�policy�question�for�the�GLA�is�around�how�we�actually�integrate�

provision�for�Gypsies�and�Travellers�within�the�overall�housing�provision�and�other�community�provisions.��For�

example,�recognise�loud�and�clear�that�Travellers�have�a�housing�need.��It�may�be�a�minority�housing�need,�but�

there�are�lots�of�other�minority�housing�needs�and�this�is�definitely�a�housing�need.��It�is�not�something�out�

there�and�quite�separate�to�this.�

�

Secondly,�in�terms�of�site�allocations,�our�experience�is�that�sometimes�when�suggestions�come�forward�for�a�

site�and�it�is�purely�a�Traveller�site�proposal,�yes,�it�can�create�some�questioning�at�a�community�level.��When�it�

is�proposed�as�a�mixed�site�in�which�there�are�some�Traveller�pitches�and�lots�of�other�community�provisions�

being�proposed�within�that�site�allocation,�it�is�much�easier�to�get�a�win-win�situation�with�all�those�involved.�

�

Thirdly,�there�are�neighbourhood�forums.��I�noticed�one�of�your�questions�is�asking�about�local�solutions.��In�

my�experience�working�with�a�number�of�neighbourhood�forums�across�London,�I�do�not�know�one�which�is�

actually�thinking�about�and�engaging�with�the�issue�of�provision�within�its�neighbourhood�forum�area�for�

Gypsies�and�Travellers.��There�needs�to�be�encouragement�at�a�policy�level�so�that�neighbourhood�forums�are�

actually�thinking�about�this.��It�could�be�a�very�progressive�thing.�

�

Finally,�on�the�policy�level,�yes,�everyone�has�to�sign�up�to�these�issues�with�an�integrated�approach�and�that�

includes�the�Mayor�of�London,�who�has�a�clear�responsibility�to�co-ordinate�the�provision�London-wide.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��The�clear�lessons�there�from�you�are�the�need�for�dialogue�and�calm�discussion�

through�forums�and�so�on�and�also�the�need�for�an�integrated�approach�in�terms�of�policy.��Yes,�thank�you.���

�

Debby�Kennett�(from�the�floor):��My�name�is�Debby�Kennett�from�the�London�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit.��I�

just�wanted�to�give�the�example�of�identifying�land.��With�the�sites�that�are�now�in�the�Olympic�Park,�the�two�

sites,�one�in�Hackney�and�one�in�Newham,�the�families�found�themselves�in�the�middle�of�the�Olympic�

development.��Obviously,�there�was�a�big�issue�at�the�time�and�we�were�very�involved�in�supporting�the�

community�that�was�faced�with�relocation.��The�Councils�said�they�did�not�have�land�to�relocate�the�sites.��

However,�in�this�case,�they�had�to�find�land�to�relocate�the�sites�because�the�Olympic�developments�were�at�

stake.��When�they�had�to�find�land,�they�did�find�land.�

�

We�know�from�our�experience�that�when�it�is�just�left�down�to�the�councils,�either�there�is�no�political�will�to�

identify�land�and�build�sites�or�there�are�all�kinds�of�obstacles.��We�really�need�the�Mayor�to�take�a�strategic�

view�on�this,�to�recognise�the�need�for�targets�on�councils�and�to�support�councils�in�delivering.��In�the�case�of�

the�Olympic�sites,�they�did�identify�land.��They�had�to�change�some�land�use.��They�built�one�site�on�

Metropolitan�Open�Land.��They�found�land�within�the�immediate�area�and�they�relocated�35�pitches�as�a�result�

of�the�Olympics.��That�was�really�my�point.�

�

The�other�point�I�wanted�to�make�was�about�unauthorised�encampments.��I�think�you�have�a�question�about�

unauthorised�encampments.��I�understand�there�is�somebody�from�Leeds�Council�talking�here�about�examples�

of�good�practice.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Yes,�we�will�be�hearing�from�Leeds�soon.�

Page 16



 

�

Debby�Kennett�(from�the�floor):��Yes.��I�really�think�that�councils�need�to�take�a�much�more�tolerant�

approach�--�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Do�you�think�we�could�learn�from�Leeds,�then?�

�

Debby�Kennett�(from�the�floor):��Yes.��Leeds�is�a�good�example�there�with�negotiated�stopping.��That�is�

what�we�need�to�be�looking�at.��I�know�in�Hackney�previously�they�had�a�similar�approach.��More�recently,�

unfortunately,�they�have�taken�a�different�approach�and�have�taken�more�of�an�approach�of�evicting�families.�

�

However,�it�needs�to�be�recognised�that�evicting�families�from�unauthorised�encampments�only�pushes�them�

from�borough�to�borough�and,�actually,�working�with�families,�councils�and�landowners�to�identify�suitable�

land�for�a�temporary�period�of�time�slows�down�evictions�and�helps�children�going�to�school�and�families�

accessing�healthcare.��That�should�be�looked�at�very�seriously.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Excellent.��That�is�very,�very�helpful.��The�key�messages�from�you,�then,�are�

the�need�for�a�London-wide�approach�and�also�to�look�at�best�practice�from�other�parts�of�the�country�and�

how�we�can�make�use�of�that.�

�

Marian�Mahoney�(from�the�floor):��On�education,�the�law�says�you�have�to�educate�your�child.��The�law�

says�you�have�to�send�them�to�school.��However,�when�you�are�being�put�on�unauthorised�sites�and�you�are�

being�sent�from�there�to�there�to�there,�they�are�not�getting�educated.��They�are�not�getting�the�right�to�learn�

and�an�education.��Then�they�blame�the�parents.��The�parents�want�them�to�be�educated,�but�they�also�want�

them�to�know�their�tradition.�

�

It�comes�down�to�the�education�and�the�modern�sickness�part�of�it�and�the�Government�is�confused�because�

they�are�looking�at�one�thing�and�meaning�another�thing.��Do�you�know�what�I�mean?��They�want�to�look�and�

recognise�that�Travellers�do�need�to�be�educated�because�everybody�needs�to�be�educated.��I�had�not�been�

educated,�I�had�to�educate�myself,�but�my�daughters�are�getting�educated�and�I�want�them�to�get�educated.��

The�Government�needs�to�understand�that�unless�they�are�in�an�environment�where�they�can�go�to�school�and�

are�not�pushed�from�pillar�to�post,�they�need�to�recognise�the�education�part�of�it�as�well�and�not�pull�these�

caravans�to�the�next�borough,�“They�are�Travellers.��Just�get�them�out�of�here”,�and�to�the�next�borough,�

“They�are�Travellers.��Get�them�out�of�here”.��They�need�to�understand�that�Traveller�people�need�to�be�

educated�and�they�do�need�to�be�recognised.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��In�terms�of�looking�at�the�overall�accommodation�provision�and�permanent�

sites�and�so�on,�we�need�to�be�thinking�about�the�wider�arguments�around�education�provision�and�so�on�and�

that�is�going�to�disrupt�schooling.��Does�anyone�else�at�this�stage�want�to�contribute�before�we�move�on�to�our�

panellists?��Is�there�anything�anyone�else�would�like�to�say�at�this�stage?��No.��Thank�you�so�much.��That�has�

given�us�an�awful�lot�to�talk�about.��It�is�good�to�hear�particularly�the�first-hand�experiences�of�people�in�the�

Gypsy�and�Traveller�communities�and�we�did�get�a�real�taste�of�that�when�we�did�our�two�site�visits�recently�as�

well.��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

We�understand�that�some�of�you�may�have�to�go�at�some�point.��Do�not�worry�if�you�are�not�able�to�stay�for�

the�whole�meeting,�but�obviously�you�are�very,�very�welcome�to�stay�for�the�whole�meeting�and�we�will�keep�

you�up-to-date�on�the�progress�with�our�work�here.��One�final�contribution?�

�

Phil�Regan�(from�the�floor):��It�is�not�a�contribution.��It�is�more�of�a�comment.��There�are�four�questions�you�

have�[on�the�provided�briefing].��Is�there�opportunity�for�the�floor�to�interject�in�any�parts�of�the�questioning?�

�

Page 17



 

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��We�do�have�a�lot�to�get�through.��If�there�are�some�really�burning�points�from�

the�floor�and�we�are�doing�OK�for�time,�then�I�am�going�to�be�lenient,�but�it�is�going�to�be�hard�work�because�

we�do�have�an�awful�lot�to�get�to.��If�there�are�some�really�burning�points,�then�I�will�try�my�best�to�

accommodate,�but�we�will�be�quite�pushed�for�time.��I�do�really�welcome�your�contributions�because�whatever�

we�do�on�this�Committee,�whatever�types�of�housing�or�accommodation�we�look�at,�we�do�want�to�hear�

directly�from�those�who�live�there�and�from�those�who�are�affected.��It�is�no�good�just�hearing�from�the�policy�

experts,�the�officers�and�so�on.��We�really�welcome�your�contribution.�

�

Phil�Regan�(from�the�floor):��Just�one�more�point,�please?��I�am�just�basically�saying�that�the�London�Plan�

left�it�to�local�authorities,�as�you�all�know,�to�identify�land�and�to�meet�that�need.��Given�that�fewer�than�ten�

pitches�have�been�developed�in�the�capital�since�2008,�this�is�clearly�not�working.�

�

I�wondered�whether�the�Assembly�and�the�Mayor�are�considering�the�economic�argument�laterally�that�mobile�

homes�cost�significantly�less�than�bricks-and-mortar�accommodation.��You�can�rent�a�mobile�home�for�

between�£150�and�£200�a�week.��Actually,�with�houses,�as�we�all�know,�you�would�be�lucky�to�get�a�shed�for�

the�same�price.��Are�local�authorities,�when�they�are�looking�to�cut�back�so�much,�not�considering�private�sites,�

community�sites�or�local�authority�sites�as�a�way�of�actually�saving�money�on�their�housing�benefit�revenues?�

�

It�is�just�that�there�are�people�out�there�who�are�looking�at�business�propositions�and�whether�or�not�a�private�

land�scheme�across�London�could�hold�a�solution�where�the�local�authorities�are�failing�to�act.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��That�is�really�useful.��It�was�a�point�about�the�wider�economic�benefits,�

potentially.��We�will�explore�that�in�our�discussions.��Thank�you.�

�

�

Page 18



 

�

Appendix 2 
Housing�Committee�-�16�October�2014�

Transcript�of�Item�6:�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Site�Provision�in�London�
Second�Session�

�
�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��We�will�now�move�to�the�formal�panel�part�of�the�discussion�today�after�

hearing�those�contributions.��Firstly,�if�I�can�put�this�to�Gill�Slater�from�the�London�Borough�of�Bromley�and�

also�Ilinca�Diaconescu�from�the�London�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit�(LGTU),�a�London-wide�assessment�of�Gypsy�

and�Traveller�accommodation�needs�was�last�undertaken�in�2008.��That�is�now�six�years�ago.��How�accurate�an�

assessment�of�need�does�that�now�provide�and�what�were�the�strengths�and�weaknesses�of�the�study?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��Bromley�was�particularly�concerned�about�the�

Gypsy�and�Traveller�Accommodation�Needs�Assessment�(GTANA)1�in�respect�of�the�psychological�aversion�

figures�and�the�scale�of�the�figures.��We�have�been�asked�along�today�for�having�the�largest�Traveller�

community�in�the�UK�and,�in�the�main,�it�is�a�settled�Traveller�community�in�bricks-and-mortar�

[accommodation].��The�figure�that�was�attached�as�a�percentage�figure�of�people�who�might�therefore�want�to�

move�out�of�bricks-and-mortar�gave�us�a�pitch�requirement�that�we�just�did�not�recognise�from�our�waiting�

lists.�

�

We�have�recently�carried�out�our�own�needs�assessment�on�the�basis�of�our�tolerated�sites,�our�own�sites�and�

how�we�see�those�increasing�in�number�over�the�years�from�children�within�those�sites.��We�are�a�long�way�

away�from�where�the�GTANA�was�without�the�psychological�aversion.��Certainly,�when�the�London�Plan�was�

being�looked�at�and�considered�and�there�were�a�number�of�ways�of�cutting�up�the�need,�one�of�them�that�

certainly�had�support�from�the�travelling�showmen�-�we�have�a�large�travelling�showmen�site�as�well�-�was�a�

distribution�across�London�that�did�not�necessarily�mean�that�the�need�reflected�the�current�need.��There�were�

communities�where,�just�because�of�historical�reasons�-�there�not�being�pitches�available�in�other�boroughs,�for�

example�-�some�boroughs�had�more�pitches�than�others�and�therefore�it�generated�a�greater�need.�

�

There�was�an�approach�in�the�London�Plan�as�it�was�being�developed�that�distributed�that�need�a�bit�more�

evenly�across�London.��Without�distribution,�we�had�20-something�pitches.��Then,�with�the�distribution,�we�

came�down�to�19�pitches.��Our�own�recent�needs�assessment�shows�a�need�somewhere�between�16,�which�are�

on�our�tolerated�sites,�and�25�as�a�current�need.��That�was�a�long�way�of�saying�it�was�the�psychological�

aversion�that�caused�us�the�most�concern,�but�obviously�it�is�out-of-date.���

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Talk�through�‘psychological�aversion’�for�us.�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��Psychological�aversion�-�and�I�am�probably�not�

best�placed�to�describe�it�-�is�the�desire�for�people�who�live�in�bricks-and-mortar�to�return�to�a�travelling�way�

of�live,�people�who�over�time�have�been�relocated�and�rehoused�into�bricks-and-mortar�but�it�is�not�where�

they�want�to�be.��Over�the�course�of�time,�they�have�been�relocated�into�bricks-and-mortar�for�various�reasons,�

but�they�have�travelling�roots�and�they�want�to�be�in�caravans�on�sites.��There�was�a�figure�of�10%�to�be�

applied�to�people�in�bricks-and-mortar.��Because�we�have�a�large�recorded�settled�community�of�upwards�of�

1,000�families�-�which�is�a�true�fact�-�and�these�are�families�whose�heritage�is�possibly�Gypsy�and�Traveller�but�

they�have�been�in�bricks-and-mortar�for�a�long�time,�a�10%�figure�on�those�families�was�100�pitches.�

�

                                                 
1�London�Boroughs’�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Accommodation�Needs�Assessment,�Fordham�Research,�March�2008 

Page 19



 

�

In�fact,�there�was�already�a�reduction�when�the�GTANA�was�developed.��In�Bromley,�there�seemed�to�be�quite�a�

comfort�level�for�our�settled�community�and�it�was�reduced�to�7.9%,�but�that�still�gave�us�a�requirement�of�79�

additional�pitches�as�a�current�psychological�aversion�need.��That�was�a�huge�stumbling�block�for�Bromley�

because�that�it�is�a�phenomenal�amount�of�pitches�and�that�was�where�we�had�a�difficulty.��That�was�in�the�

GTANA�but�it�was�brought�down�as�the�London�Plan�was�being�developed.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��What�would�you�say�to�the�contributions�that�we�have�heard�from�people�who�

feel�that�there�needs�to�be�a�stronger�London-wide�strategic�approach�and�just�leaving�it�to�individual�

boroughs�is�not�delivering�what�is�needed?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��That�was�certainly�Bromley’s�representation�to�

the�London�Plan.��We�have�moved�forward�because�there�is�not�a�strategic�approach,�but�that�was�certainly�the�

approach�that�Bromley�was�keen�to�have.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Let�us�hear�from�Ilinca�from�LGTU.��If�I�can�put�the�same�question�to�you�

about�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Accommodation�Needs�Assessment�that�took�place�in�2008�and�your�views�on�

that?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��In�the�LGTU’s�view�and�in�the�view�of�the�community,�we�

know�that�the�total�figure�that�the�GTANA�arrived�at�of�around�800�pitches�between�2007�and�2017�is�

definitely�an�underestimate,�as�is�the�Census,�for�example,�which�identifies�a�very�low�number�of�Gypsies�and�

Travellers�across�the�country.��That�is�to�do�with�the�efforts�that�are�put�into�engaging�with�the�community�in�

each�of�the�boroughs.��I�know�that�in�some�boroughs�there�was�quite�good�engagement�with�the�local�

communities.��Through�focus�groups�and�one-to-one�interviews�and�through�organisations�who�worked�on�the�

ground�with�the�communities,�more�members�of�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�community�could�be�revealed�and�be�

counted.��From�that�point�of�view,�the�London-wide�needs�assessment�was�quite�uneven�because�the�approach�

was�not�the�same�in�each�of�the�boroughs.�

�

We�would�obviously�fight�for�the�maximum�figure�to�be�included�in�any�Local�Plan�and�in�the�London�Plan�

because�you�have�heard�a�few�examples�from�the�floor�of�people�who�did�live�in�bricks-and-mortar�due�to�

various�reasons�but�mainly�because�of�a�shortage�of�sites.��That�is�the�main�reason�in�London,�really.��Some�of�

them�might�choose�or�might�accept�offers�for�bricks-and-mortar�housing�because�they�have�health�issues�that�

cannot�be�addressed�on�sites,�but�it�is�mainly�to�do�with�a�shortage�of�culturally�adequate�provision.�

�

Then�there�is�the�psychological�aversion.��That�is�a�contentious�issue�because�it�is�to�do�with�how�someone�

proves�that�they�are�ill�because�they�live�in�a�flat.��In�some�of�the�court�cases,�people�actually�had�to�sit�

through�psychiatric�tests�to�prove�that�a�flat�was�not�suitable�for�them.��That�is�really�inhumane�and�I�hope�

everyone�in�this�room�agrees�with�that.��Calling�it�‘psychological�aversion’�implies�that�additional�evidence�

needs�to�be�provided�about�how�much�someone�suffers�from�being�placed�in�a�type�of�accommodation�that�

does�not�suit�them�and�that�they�have�not�grown�up�in.��They�are�not�used�to�it�and�it�causes�depression,�

anxiety,�stress�and�isolation,�mainly.�

�

I�know�there�are�examples�of�communities�-�and�I�think�Bromley�is�one�of�the�cases�-�where�a�part�of�a�

neighbourhood�has�a�majority�of�Gypsies�and�Travellers.��There�are�some�examples�of�estates.��One�of�them�is�

in�Hackney�-�a�council�estate,�but�some�of�the�accommodation�is�private�-�where�members�of�the�community�

want�to�rent�a�property�because�of�the�layout�of�the�estate,�which�is�similar�to�bungalows�or�a�site,�and�they�

are�close�to�other�sites.��That�is�a�type�of�bricks-and-mortar�accommodation�that�is�a�bit�more�suitable.���

�

Page 20



 

�

In�terms�of�the�strengths�and�weaknesses�of�the�2008�GTANA,�obviously�the�biggest�strength�is�that�it�was�

done�at�the�same�time�all�over�London�and�did�not�have�all�these�discrepancies�between�neighbouring�

boroughs�doing�their�needs�assessments�six�months�one�after�the�other�and�failing�to�co-ordinate.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��It�being�done�at�the�same�time�using�standardised�methodology�across�the�

capital,�you�felt,�was�a�strength?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��Yes.��Obviously,�you�need�to�make�sure�that�locally�there�are�

links�with�the�community.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Can�I�ask�if�you�see�value�in�a�revised�GTANA�and�should�that�be�on�a�

pan-London�or�a�sub-regional�basis,�Ilinca?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��There�is�value�in�having�a�London-wide�needs�assessment�

which�breaks�it�down�in�to�sub-regions.��As�Phil�[Regan,�Volunteer,�Kensington�and�Chelsea�Social�Council]�

said,�you�have�to�tie�the�needs�assessment�with�the�site�provision.��Otherwise,�this�becomes�yet�another�

accounting�exercise,�in�a�way.��We�recognise�the�importance�of�having�a�robust�evidence�base�if�it�is�

co-ordinated�at�a�London-wide�level�and�can�support�the�London’s�Plan�and�the�Mayor’s�Housing�Strategy.��It�

can�be�effective�in�that�way�if�it�sits�next�to�the�London�Strategic�Housing�Market�Assessment�(SHMA)�and�is�

not�just�a�study�that�is�done�for�the�sake�of�doing�it.��We�are�six�or�seven�years�into�the�2008�study�and�almost�

nothing�has�been�delivered.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��You�do�not�just�want�to�see�theoretical�studies�that�get�filed�away?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��Of�course.�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��Just�to�say�that�within�our�sub-region,�chiefly�

because�we�have�some�tolerated�sites�that�were�at�the�end�of�their�temporary�periods�of�permission,�for�us,�

looking�at�how�we�would�address�future�pitch�provision�was�a�matter�of�some�urgency.��We�carried�out�an�

internal�needs�assessment.��We�have�been�having�duty-to-co-operate�meetings�with�our�neighbouring�

boroughs.��Certainly�in�south�east�London�we�were�looking�at�whether�or�not�there�was�scope�to�jointly�

commission�a�company�to�look�at�producing�a�needs�assessment�for�us.�

�

Because�of�the�speed�of�the�various�approaches�to�various�plans�-�we�were�working�towards�our�Local�Plan�and�

coming�in�fairly�late�and�others�were�trying�to�make�sure�that�their�Plans�were�aligning�with�the�new�London�

Plan�and�everybody�was�at�different�stages�-�and�added�to�that,�of�course,�just�workloads�and�stuff�lining�up�

and�the�various�policies�that�had�to�be�worked�through,�the�timing�was�not�good�for�everybody�to�come�in�as�

one.��However,�some�of�the�other�authorities�were�looking�at�jointly�commissioning�and�at�least�having�some�

kind�of�consistency�in�the�approach�taken�by�basically�using�a�single�consultant.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Is�there�anything�else�that�you�think�the�Mayor�of�London�should�be�doing?��

Both�Gill�from�a�borough’s�perspective�and�Ilinca�from�a�Gypsy�and�Traveller�perspective,�what�else�would�you�

like�to�see�the�Mayor�of�London�doing?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��We�are�moving�ahead�with�our�needs�

assessment�and�pitch�allocations.��The�issue�of�transit�sites�and�indeed�sites�for�travelling�showmen�is�definitely�

larger�than�a�borough�issue.��We�had�felt�that�it�was�all�a�strategic�issue�but,�certainly�when�you�get�to�the�level�

of�transit�sites�and�travelling�showmen,�those�are�issues�and�the�panel�agreed�also�in�the�run-up�to�the�London�

Page 21



 

�

Plan�that�those�need�to�be�looked�at�sub-regionally.��Obviously,�there�is�a�duty�to�co-operate�and�we�are�doing�

the�best�we�can,�but�actually�it�is�a�tricky�business�without�that�kind�of�clear�steer�from�the�London�Plan.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��A�clear�steer�from�the�London�Plan�is�your�key�message.��

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��The�same,�a�clear�steer,�but�also�practical�support�in�terms�of�

the�Traveller�Pitch�Funding,�for�example,�where�the�money�sits.��I�am�not�even�sure�how�many�local�authorities�

know�about�it.��It�could�be�something�like�the�Mayor�approaching�local�authorities,�inviting�them�and�working�

together�to�find�this�land�through�the�London�SHMA.��There�are�practical�ways�in�which�the�Mayor�or�the�GLA�

can�be�proactive�and�not�wait�for�local�authorities�to�engage�on�the�issue.�

�

Secondly,�provide�more�support�for�the�community�and�for�organisations�that�work�with�the�community�to�be�

able�to�engage�more�and�draw�more�people�in�so�that,�when�the�needs�assessment�is�done,�you�make�sure�you�

have�the�right�number�in�there�and�people�are�supported�throughout�the�processes.��Most�times,�Travellers�

have�to�arrange�their�own�meetings�with�councils�to�discuss�these�issues�and�it�takes�a�lot�of�effort,�time�and�

resources�that�the�community�does�not�necessarily�have.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��OK.��That�is�really�helpful.��Jamie,�could�I�put�some�of�this�to�you?��You�have�

heard�the�comments�from�the�floor�about�the�need�to�identify�further�sites�and�about�the�slow�and�often�

painful�process�that�seems�to�be�happening�at�borough�level�to�get�sites�identified�and�up�and�running,�and�

then�about�the�need�that�we�have�heard�for�a�clear�London�Plan�policy.��How�would�you�respond�to�what�you�

have�heard�so�far?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��I�do�not�think�we�would�

contend�that�the�2008�study�is�somehow�an�up-to-date�and�accurate�position�of�the�London-wide�position�

now.��We�obviously�refreshed�the�SHMA�at�the�turn�of�this�year�and�the�end�of�last�year.��Whilst�that�looks�at�

London-wide�need�overall�and�will�pick�up�people�in�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�community�who�were�included�

within�those�statistics,�it�was�not�a�local-level�primary�research-gathering�piece�of�work�which�looked�at�overall�

needs�and�was�able�to�drill�down�at�very�local�level�into�what�is�needed.��The�clear�thing�overall�is�that�the�

levels�of�need�vary�quite�significantly�from�borough�to�borough�and�doing�it�from�a�top-level�position�like�we�

did�with�the�recent�SHMA�is�not�appropriate�to�assess�that�need.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��OK,�you�say�it�needs�to�be�done�locally�borough�by�borough.��Have�all�the�

boroughs�now�undertaken�their�assessments?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��I�do�not�know�that.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��If�these�things�are�being�handled�locally,�surely�there�is�a�strategic�role�for�the�

Mayor�in�co-ordinating�the�information�that�comes�from�those?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��There�is�a�clear�position�in�

the�London�Plan,�which�I�will�defer�to�John�[Lett]�on.��In�terms�of�the�Mayor’s�housing�role,�it�is�in�terms�of�

making�the�funding�available,�encouraging�people�to�take�that�up.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��In�other�areas�of�housing�policy,�you�gather�data�across�London,�do�you�not?�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Boroughs�have�to�do�SHMAs.��By�when�do�they�have�to�do�them?�

�

Page 22



 

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��You�need�to�have�a�SHMA�

to�support�your�local�plan.��You�have�to�have�a�firm�evidence�base�and�there�are�a�number�of�other�hurdles�

that�you�have�to�get�over.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��You�are�not�actively�monitoring�the�delivery�of�the�assessments�at�a�borough�

level?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��In�the�same�way�that�I�

could�not�tell�you�exactly�what�date�each�borough�refreshed�its�local�housing�strategy�recently.�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��That�is�really�not�good�enough�because�we�do�know�that�there�is�this�very�deep-set�

prejudice�against�providing�for�Travellers�and�Gypsies�in�London�and�therefore�there�is�a�statutory�equalities�

duty�by�the�GLA�to�override�that�and�to�ensure�that�the�boroughs�are�doing�something.��It�could�be�that�they�

do�surveys�and�at�the�end�conclude�that�there�are�absolutely�no�Travellers�in�their�boroughs�and�there�are�one�

or�two�boroughs�that�have�decided�that�they�are�not�any,�but�they�need�to�show�they�have�been�through�that.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��As�a�result�of�the�investigation,�we�will�obviously�be�making�recommendations,�

but�there�is�surprise�that�a�more�proactive�approach�is�not�being�taken�to�at�least�monitor�what�is�happening�at�

borough�level,�even�if�the�overall�assessment�is�being�done�locally�rather�than�across�the�whole�of�London.�

�

John�Lett,�could�I�ask�you,�then,�about�the�London�Plan�policy?��There�is�a�clear�call�both�from�Bromley�and�

from�the�LGTU�that�the�London�Plan�policy�needs�to�be�clearer.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��Yes.��You�will�be�aware�that�the�current�London�Plan�

policy�was�arrived�at�after�three�iterations�of�policy�testing.��It�was�not�as�if�the�Mayor�did�not�take�it�seriously.��

He�looked�very�carefully�at�how�to�address�these�needs.��He�recognises�that�addressing�those�needs�is�a�

strategic�issue�and�in�looking�at�the�scale�of�the�need�-�particularly�in,�as�we�have�been�talking�about,�SHMAs�-�

it�has�to�be�proportionate�and�effective.�

�

The�London-wide�SHMA�shows�a�need�on�the�one�hand�for�49,000�new�homes�per�annum�if�we�address�the�

backlog�of�need�over�20�years�or�62,000�if�we�address�it�over�10�years.��We�are�seeking,�of�course,�to�get�as�

close�to�the�62,000�as�we�can,�but�for�the�moment�realistically�we�focus�on�the�49,000.�

�

Reference�has�been�made�to�the�Fordham�study.��If�you�look�at�the�basic�summary�of�that,�it�is�quite�a�

complicated�study.��You�will�see�that�the�need�from�Fordham�is�somewhere�between�22�and�just�over�70�a�

year.��It�is�slightly�higher�if�you�take�some�of�the�subsequent�calculations�we�did,�which�will�get�you�up�to�80�a�

year,�when�we�were�doing�this�iterative�policy�development�exercise.�

�

It�is�not�really�technically�fit-for-purpose�to�try�to�get�a�really�small-scale�approach�in�assessing�need�and�to�

couple�that�up�with�a�broad�London-wide�SHMA.��The�two�things�are�quite�different�technically.��The�sample�

sizes�would�be�absolutely�enormous�if�we�were�to�try�to�do�it�in�the�same�way.�

�

The�Mayor�has�taken�the�view�that�it�is�more�effective�to�identify�these�needs�locally,�working�with�the�

boroughs,�and�we�will�then�check�those�-�which�is�the�point�Mr�[John]�Biggs�was�making�-�as�part�of�the�

general�conformity�process�when�a�Local�Plan�comes�up.��We�look�at�the�SHMAs�in�considerable�detail�now,�

particularly�as�the�new�National�Planning�Policy�Framework�(NPPF)�is�needs-driven�and�is�about�identification�

of�housing�need.�

�

Page 23



 

�

The�point�was�made�about�using�the�SHMA�to�look�at�the�supply�side.��You�are�looking�at�an�aggregate�figure�

of�62,000�and�then�trying�to�make�good�the�gap�between�the�62,000�and�the�49,000;�very�large�figures.��The�

way�that�this�would�be�picked�up�would�be�an�aggregate�because�it�would�be�part�of�what�we�call�the�‘small�

sites�assumption’,�which�looks�at�the�historic�trend�in�sites�of�less�than�0.25�hectares,�which�is�where�more�or�

less�most�of�these�sites�will�come�through.��From�memory,�when�we�did�this�in�2010,�most�of�the�sites�were�

around�that�size�or�a�little�bit�less.���

�

John�Biggs�AM:��I�am�wondering�-�at�the�risk�of�asking�a�mischievous�question�-�if�you�could�just�remind�us�

for�the�record�whether�the�[Planning]�Inspector�into�the�London�Plan�agreed�with�the�Mayor’s�approach�on�

this.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��Yes,�as�far�as�I�can�recall.��I�will�need�to�check.��It�was�in�

2011.�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��I�do�not�think�he�did.���

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��No,�he�did�not.��Some�of�us�around�this�table�made�representations�which�chime�with�

everything�that�has�been�said�in�terms�of�the�Mayor�taking�a�strategic�view�of�this.��In�fact,�that�was�borne�out�

by�the�Inspector’s�report,�but�the�Mayor�chose�not�to�pick�it�up.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��We�will�get�a�detailed�note�on�what�the�Inspector�said.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��I�think�you�are�probably�correct�on�that.��I�do�apologise.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.��We�note�that.���

�

Tony�Arbour�AM:��You�Ilinca�[Diaconescu]�told�us�there�was�“definitely”,�I�quote,�an�underestimate�of�800�

pitches.��How�do�you�know�there�is�definitely�a�shortfall�of�800?��You�have�heard�from�Mr�Lett�that�the�figure�

is�nothing�like�that.�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��Obviously,�no�one�collects�very�robust�evidence�on�the�Gypsy�

and�Traveller�population�anywhere�in�the�country,�but�just�from�knowing�and�working�with�the�communities,�

the�organisations�who�work�with�the�communities�know�that�there�were�more�than�800�in�London�back�in�

2007�who�needed�a�pitch.��They�are�making�some�estimations,�but�then�recording�that�need�is�a�different�--�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM:��It�is�not�very�scientific,�is�it?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��It�is�not,�but�I�have�not�seen�any�alternative�that�is�more�

robust,�certainly�no�more�robust�than�Fordham’s�in�terms�of�methodology�and�accepting�the�needs�of�Gypsies�

and�Travellers�who�live�in�bricks-and-mortar.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM:��It�is�interesting�that�you�draw�a�comparison�between�what�you�are�saying�and�Fordham�

because,�of�course,�that�was�precisely�the�objection�which�was�made�to�Fordham:�that�it�was�not�terribly�

objective�because�in�effect�they�were�asking�Travellers�what�they�would�like.��You�have�done�the�same,�have�

you�not?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��Comparing�it�with�the�way�wider�housing�needs�assessments�

are�done,�like�the�SHMA,�which�is�really�looking�at�survey�data,�the�samples�do�not�reflect�all�the�distinctions�in�

London’s�population.��That�is�one�of�the�criticisms�we�would�have�to�that�argument�that�the�SHMA�picked�up�

Page 24



 

�

numbers�of�Gypsies�and�Travellers�who�lived�in�London�in�those�areas.��Gypsies�and�Travellers�are�not�recorded�

in�the�English�Housing�Survey,�for�example,�as�a�category.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM:��Are�you�able�to�tell�the�Committee�of�any�objective�demonstration�that�there�is�a�shortage�

of�places�in�London,�something�objective?�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��Yes,�the�overcrowding�on�sites;�knowing�that�people�suffer�

from�depression�in�housing�and�from�being�on�waiting�lists�for�12�to�15�years.��Those�processes�are�not�

standardised�across�London�and�that�is�the�biggest�problem.��No�one�at�a�London-wide�level�collects�

information�from�the�local�level�on�what�the�overcrowding�situation�is�or�how�many�people�are�mentally�ill�

because�they�live�in�housing�--�

�

[Inaudible�input�from�the�public�gallery]�

�

Having�waiting�lists�that�are�properly�maintained�and�that�people�know�about�is�another�issue.��Councils�might�

say,�“We�have�a�waiting�list”,�but�they�do�not�go�out�and�reach�out�to�the�community�and�explain�how�to�get�

their�names�on�that�waiting�list�or�what�it�is�all�about.��It�is�co-ordinating�that�with�the�wider�housing�allocation�

policies.�

�

[Inaudible�input�from�the�public�gallery]�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Most�Members�of�the�Committee�have�seen�for�ourselves�some�of�the�sites�

and�the�overcrowded�conditions�on�a�temporary�site�and�so�on�and�we�are�well�aware�of�that,�most�of�us.�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��Just�very�quickly,�I�just�

wanted�to�clarify�that�point�around�the�SHMA.��The�most�recent�SHMA�was�not�based�on�survey�data,�which�is�

how�the�previous�one�was�carried�out.��That�was�quite�expensive�and�involved�a�lot�of�individual�interviews�and�

a�consultant�to�do�it.��We�based�it�entirely�on�secondary�data�and�carried�that�out�in-house�at�a�much�lower�

cost.��Insomuch�as�Gypsies�and�Travellers�are�represented�within�that�data,�they�are�captured,�but�you�cannot�

analyse�their�individual�needs.��As�Ilinca�[Diaconescu]�said,�for�the�English�Housing�Survey,�one�of�the�sources�

we�used,�the�sample�size�means�you�cannot�say,�“This�is�the�individual�need�in�those�areas�for�Gypsies�and�

Travellers”,�which�is�underlining�my�point�about�why�the�London-wide�assessment�cannot�pick�up�this�local�

need.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Initially�to�Gill�and�to�Ilinca�[Diaconescu],�can�you�tell�us�what�criteria�-�and�then�which�

ones�particularly�are�singled�out�-�are�used�when�identifying�new�sites?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��At�the�moment,�our�first�concern�is�that�we�

have�prepared�our�needs�assessment�and�certainly�the�needs�are�emanating�in�the�main�from�our�tolerated�

sites�that�have�ongoing�refusals�and�have�then�been�allowed�on�appeal.��Those�sites�are�where�families�are�

established�and�have�been�established�for�five�or�sometimes�ten�years�with�subsequent�rolling�refusals�and�

then�permissions�on�appeal.��Those�sites�are�the�ones�that�we�are�first�looking�at�to�address�their�own�current�

needs.�

�

We�have�two�council�Travellers�sites�of�our�own�and�one�has�boundaries�that�are�not�very�clearly�delineated�on�

a�map.��We�are�revisiting�our�boundaries�to�check�that�those�can�be�defensible�because,�probably�in�common�

with�other�outer�London�boroughs,�our�Travellers�-�both�those�on�council-accepted�sites�and�one�permitted�

private�site�and�those�on�the�tolerated�private�sites�-�are�all�in�the�greenbelt.��We�are�in�a�position�where,�in�

looking�for�sites,�we�look�either�at�the�urban�area�where�sites�are�very�few�and�far�between,�as�with�much�of�

Page 25



 

�

London,�or�at�a�heavily�developed�residential�area�with�not�an�awful�lot�of�redevelopment.��We�are�quite�an�

established�suburban�residential�area.��The�Travellers�sites,�permanent�and�those�that�are�currently�not�

permanent,�are�within�the�greenbelt�and�we�are�looking�initially�at�those�sites�to�see�whether�they�meet�the�

criteria.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Have�you�identified�sites�in�the�greenbelt?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��We�have,�yes.��They�are�tolerated�sites.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Is�there�any�new�provision�in�the�greenbelt?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��It�is�not�new�provision.��It�is�the�tolerated�sites,�

but�our�current�need�emanates�from�those�tolerated�sites.��Those�are�the�families�within�Bromley�for�which�we�

have�the�need.��Looking�forward,�chiefly,�it�is�the�children�from�those�families.��Their�sites�have�pitches�and�the�

sites,�such�as�they�are,�have�temporary�planning�permissions�limiting�them�to�two�or�three�mobiles�and�then�

trailers�as�well.�

�

When�we�designate�those�as�Traveller�sites,�which�is�our�intention�in�line�with�the�Planning�Policy�for�Traveller�

Sites�(PPTS),�there�is�scope�for�more�pitches�and�for�those�to�be�more�intensively�used�by�those�families.��That�

is�our�first�port�of�call�when�looking�for�new�pitches.��How�can�we�make�better�use�of�the�sites�that�we�have�

that�are�already�permitted�and�how�the�sites�that�are�tolerated�sites�that�we�think�certainly�make�the�best�

option�can�be,�by�those�families,�more�intensively�used.��We�have�a�draft�policy�coming�forward�which�points�in�

that�direction.�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�LGTU):��Criteria�for�identifying�new�sites�are�set�out�in�each�Local�Plan�

and�the�core�strategy.��Usually,�from�my�knowledge,�most�of�them�have�a�policy�on�Gypsy�and�Traveller�site�

provision�and�each�local�authority�lists�its�own�criteria�for�new�sites.��That�is�to�assess�planning�applications�

that�are�coming�in,�as�well�as�any�sites�that�the�council�will�put�forward�through�its�site�allocation�part�of�the�

Local�Plan.�

�

In�terms�of�identifying�land,�the�main�process�the�councils�use�is�to�look�at�their�assets�and�then�assess�them�

against�those�criteria�and�also�to�check�if�they�are�available,�suitable�and�viable,�which�are�the�NPPF�tests.���

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��I�would�just�say�we�also�have�a�call�for�sites.��

Sites�will�come�forward�and�there�are�some�criteria,�obviously,�about�access�to�schools�and�services.��There�are�

a�range�of�criteria�that�we�will�be�drawing�from�the�PPTS�and�that�we�are�formulating�into�our�policy.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Are�there�problems�with�identifying�sites?��I�want�to�know�what�problems�you�have�in�

identifying�sites.��When�I�was�a�councillor�[for�the�London�Borough�of�Haringey]�I�had�enormous�problems�in�

identifying�sites�and�in�actually�keeping�the�sites�we�had.��I�just�want�to�hear�a�bit�more�about�what�problems�

you�have�in�identifying�new�sites�from�other�members�of�the�panel.�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��Insofar�as�we�are�looking�to�deal�with�the�need�

in�our�needs�assessment,�we�are�looking�at�sites�that�really�the�Travellers�have�brought�along�themselves.��They�

have�lived�there�for�a�certain�length�of�time,�they�are�established�in�that�they�have�been�there�and�tolerated�

and�they�own�the�sites.��We�have�not�actively�gone�out�to�look�further�than�that�because�we�think�those�sites�

will�cater�for�those�needs�and�the�needs�emanating�from�their�families.�

�

Page 26



 

�

Obviously,�we�are�still�developing�our�Local�Plan�at�this�stage�and�the�Inspector�may�argue�differently,�but�we�

are�comfortable�with�our�existing�sites�that�those�sites�very�much�are�sites�that�the�Travellers�have�had�over�a�

period�of�time,�which�has�made�it�probably�easy�for�us�because�we�have�not�actually�had�to�go�out�and�seek�

sites.��That�is�where�the�problems�will�be�for�authorities�that�do�not�have�those�solutions�lining�up�for�them.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��The�sites�have�been�identified�anyway�by�the�community�and�your�role�now�is�

to�assist�in�formalising�that�through�the�planning�process?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��More�or�less.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��I�just�want�to�point�out,�Chair,�that�one�of�the�results�I�found�when�I�was�involved�in�

planning�in�a�borough�of�not�identifying�sites�and�not�holding�on�to�the�sites�we�had�was�that�we�had�all�sorts�

of�temporary�and�-�in�the�eyes�of�the�community�around�those�sites�-�illegal�sites.��It�led�to�reinforcing�the�

prejudice�that�we�have�heard�about�instead�of�making�for�better�community�relationships.��I�just�wondered�

whether�that�has�been�a�feature�in�anyone’s�experience.��It�seems�to�me�one�of�the�real�challenges�in�boroughs�

-�and�the�Mayor�-�not�taking�a�strategic�approach�and�boroughs�not�actually�really�facing�up�to�the�needs�of�

this�community.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Bill�Forrester�and�Rob�McCartney�from�Kent�County�Council�and�Leeds�City�

Council�respectively�sat�very�patiently�here.��I�am�going�to�put�Nicky’s�question�to�both�of�you�to�talk�about�

your�experiences�in�terms�of�identifying�sites�and�any�recommendations�you�would�have�for�City�Hall�and�the�

boroughs�in�London.��Bill�Forrester,�shall�we�start�with�you?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Thank�you�for�the�invitation�to�

join�in�your�discussions.��It�has�been�very�interesting�this�afternoon.�

�

In�Kent�-�and�this�would�apply�to�all�two-tier�county�authorities�-�the�district�councils�are�responsible�for�

planning�policy.��The�county�council�is�no�longer�a�planning�authority,�apart�from�minerals�and�waste�and�so�

on.��They�would�have�a�list�of�criteria�that�they�would�use�for�assessing�sites�when�they�do�a�call�for�sites.��The�

call�for�sites�would�be�part�of�the�planning�policy�process�and�the�sites�could�be�suggested�by�a�whole�range�of�

different�people,�but�in�general�most�of�the�suggestions�will�come�from�-�as�Gill�[Slater]�has�said�-�existing�

unauthorised�developments�or�sites�with�some�temporary�consent�to�make�them�permanent�because,�until�they�

are�permanent,�they�do�not�count�in�the�overall�numbers.�

�

In�terms�of�my�own�experience,�I�have�been�involved�in�developing�about�200�pitches�altogether�across�Essex�

and�Kent.��Some�of�them�have�had�unauthorised�encampments�on�them�beforehand�that�have�presented�the�

need.��Quite�a�number�of�them�have�not�had�that.��However,�the�criteria�are�very�important�and�they�are�not�all�

necessarily�met.��When�you�have�a�list�of�criteria�when�you�go�out�to�do�searches�and�you�are�looking�at�

different�land�ownerships�and�so�on,�you�will�not�meet�all�of�those�criteria�but�it�is�very�important�to�have�them�

because�they�are�the�same�sorts�of�considerations�you�would�apply�to�other�developments�in�a�lot�of�cases.��

You�are�talking�about�planning�issues,�you�are�talking�about�visual�intrusion,�you�are�talking�about�highway�

access,�you�are�talking�about�the�ability�to�landscape�and�you�are�also�talking�about�the�size�of�land�that�you�

are�actually�looking�at.��It�is�very�important�to�start�with�to�be�looking�at�what�sort�of�size.��The�size,�then,�

should�have�some�reference�to�surrounding�services�and�facilities.�

�

There�are�also�sustainability�issues,�which�really�test�people�out�because�a�lot�of�Travellers�will�want�to�be�in�

remote�rural�areas�and�to�be�away�from�other�people�who�may�be�antagonistic�to�them,�but�that�actually�

inherently�is�not�very�sustainable.��I�do�not�think�you�would�have�such�an�issue�in�London,�certainly�not�in�the�

inner�boroughs,�in�terms�of�that�sustainability,�but�you�might�have�it�in�the�outer�boroughs.�

Page 27



 

�

�

It�is�very�important�to�have�a�checklist�and�it�is�very�important�to�have�reference�points.��Otherwise,�you�will�

get�challenged�by�people.��You�will�always�get�challenged�by�people�about�finding�more�suitable�sites�or�as�

suitable�sites�that�they�will�be�arguing�should�be�put�forward.�

�

There�are�various�techniques�that�different�authorities�use.��Sometimes�people�will�whittle�it�down�to�one�

particular�site�proposal�and�press�forward�with�that.��Sometimes�people�will�have�lists,�in�which�case�you�can�

get�a�lot�of�feeling�between�different�communities�all�trying�to�prevent�their�community�being�the�one�where�it�

is�developed.��In�general,�I�would�probably�opt�for�the�first�one�rather�than�the�second.�

�

In�fact,�the�site�we�have�just�completed�in�Kent�is�a�26-pitch�site�in�a�really�good�location.��We�had�some�

ownership�of�land.��We�managed�to�acquire�extra�land.��The�services�and�facilities�and�access�to�transport�and�

so�on�are�absolutely�superb.��As�far�as�I�am�concerned,�any�site�that�I�have�been�involved�in�developing,�I�like�

to�go�and�stand�on�it,�“Would�I�live�here?”��If�I�would�not�live�there,�then�I�will�go�back�and�say,�“This�is�not�a�

suitable�place”.��There�are�some�very�poor�sites�that�have�been�established�down�the�years�in�very�poor�

locations.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��The�point�we�heard�from�Richard�[Lee,�Co-ordinator,�Just�Space]�earlier�about�

integration�with�the�wider�planning�policy�is�particularly�important�from�your�perspective,�then?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Yes,�because�my�view�-�and�

some�of�us�have�been�arguing�this�for�the�last�20�years�and�eventually�getting�listened�to�-�is�that�there�is�not�

any�reason�why�Traveller�provision�should�be�treated�any�differently�from�other�housing�provision,�including�

social�housing,�and�it�should�be�planned�for.��If�you�do�not�plan�for�it,�then�you�get�problems.�

�

An�unauthorised�encampment�is�a�symptom�quite�often�of�shortage�of�provision,�but�it�is�not�just�that.��It�is�

also�that�people�who�have�a�settled�base�elsewhere�are�travelling.��It�is�holidays.��It�is�social�reasons�for�people�

travelling�around�the�country.��The�fact�that�people�are�on�an�unauthorised�encampment�does�not�mean�they�

have�no�other�accommodation,�but�it�may�mean�they�do�not�have�any�other�accommodation.��It�is�quite�a�

difficult�issue�to�get�into�and�the�numbers�are�difficult�to�get�into.�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��Kent�is�a�county,�but�you�must�have�a�number�of�district�councils?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��That�is�right,�we�have�12�

districts.�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��My�experience�in�London�is�that�some�districts�will�be�more�supportive�than�others�in�

accommodating�Traveller�communities.��Do�you�find�that�there�are�perverse�or�other�consequences�as�a�result�

of�that?��That�the�distribution�of�sites�is�mixed�and�the�movement�of�families�between�districts�is�noticeably�

different�as�a�result�of�that?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Yes,�we�do�find�that.��There�

are�sometimes�historical�reasons�to�do�with�policies�that�have�been�pursued�against�unauthorised�

encampments�in�the�past�where�you�do�get�provision�made.��Then�what�happens�is�that�when�you�do�the�

forward�projections,�you�actually�have�increasing�numbers�and�new�household�formation�taking�place�and�

therefore�the�areas�they�already�have�will�have�a�greater�further�need�for�sites.�

�

Page 28



 

�

Something�we�were�looking�at�with�the�South�East�Plan2�was�the�ability�to�correct�that�over�10,�15�or�20�years�

so�that�we�had�a�wider�range�of�sites�available�to�people�across�the�south�east.��That�is�not�possible�with�the�

current�planning�processes.��There�should�not�really�be�some�places�where�there�are�sites�and�some�places�

where�there�are�not,�but�there�are�certain�particular�areas�where�there�are�concentrations�of�Travellers.��In�

Kent,�we�have�three�out�of�seven�and�they�are�0.5%�of�the�population�across�the�country�as�a�whole.��Fenland�

is�another�of�them.��When�you�are�looking�at�concentrations,�there�are�probably�10,000�to�20,000�Travellers�

living�across�Kent.��In�some�other�counties,�you�will�have�much�smaller�numbers.�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��In�terms�of�your�strategic�role�as�a�county�council,�you�would�welcome�having�the�

opportunity�to�give�some�strategic�oversight�to�the�distribution�of�sites?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Yes,�definitely.��I�was�

personally�very�involved�with�the�drawing-up�of�the�accommodation�assessments�and�so�on�and�working�with�

the�district.��The�second�time�around�they�have�actually�commissioned�people�to�do�it.��I�have�been�involved�

very�little,�but�I�certainly�either�know�or�could�find�out�the�numbers�across�Kent�for�need,�provision�and�

deliverability.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.��That�is�very�helpful.��Let�us�hear�from�Rob�McCartney�and�Leeds�

City�Council’s�experience.��

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��Thank�you�for�the�invitation.��Leeds�is�

the�second-largest�single-tier�authority�in�England�and�whilst�people�would�commonly�think�of�Leeds�as�having�

an�urban�core,�two-thirds�of�Leeds�is�greenbelt�land�and�clearly�that�has�implications�in�respect�of�planning�

decisions�and�certainly�in�terms�of�Travellers.�

�

To�start�with,�I�would�highlight�that�Leeds�has�updated�its�accommodation�assessment.��We,�as�a�city,�were�not�

satisfied�with�the�2008�work�that�had�been�done,�which�was�done�on�a�West�Yorkshire�basis�across�the�five�

West�Yorkshire�authorities.��There�were�a�number�of�reasons�for�that,�which�I�will�not�go�through�in�great�

detail,�but�essentially,�we�did�not�believe�that�the�views�of�Gypsies�and�Travellers�were�at�the�heart�of�the�2008�

GTANAs.��It�was�carried�out�in�conjunction�with�a�local�advocacy�group,�Leeds�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Exchange�

(GATE),�and�we�used�community�members�to�develop�the�survey�and�also�to�carry�out�the�survey�work,�so�we�

used�community�members�as�community�enumerators.�

�

That�enabled�us�to�identify�concealed�or�hard�to�reach�households�that�ourselves,�as�council�officers,�but�also�

the�advocacy�group,�would�not�necessarily�be�aware�of.��That�then�enabled�us�to�find�a�good�balance�between�

an�expressed�housing�preference�and�assessed�housing�need.��The�reason�why�I�talk�about�the�updated�GTANA�

is�that�when�we�move�on�to�site�allocation�work�specifically�in�terms�of�call�for�sites,�it�has�got�to�be�more�than�

Gypsies�and�Travellers�having�the�capacity�to�suggest�sites.��In�my�view,�they�need�to�be�involved�in�the�

assessment�process�as�well�in�terms�of�determining�whether�sites�are�suitable.�

�

In�Leeds,�so�far�we�have�put�forward�one�site�for�permanent�development.��That�is�in�the�greenbelt.��It�was�

approved�by�Leeds�Council,�but�has�been�called�in�by�the�Secretary�of�State�[for�Communities�and�Local�

Government]�and�we�are�expecting�a�decision�early�next�year�as�to�whether�that�is�approved�or�not.��In�terms�

of�site�criteria,�clearly�issues�such�as�land�status,�whether�the�site�is�in�the�greenbelt,�the�flood�risk,�proximity�

to�industry,�to�things�such�as�businesses,�accessibility�to�schools,�shops�and�health�services,�healthcare�and�so�

on,�but�also�in�terms�of�ultimately�one�of�the�key�criteria�we�will�be�looking�at�is�absence�of�alternative�sites,�

                                                 
2�Former�Regional�Spatial�Strategy�for�the�South�East�–�abolished�in�February�2013,�to�be�replaced�by�measures�set�out�in�the�
Localism�Act�2011.�

Page 29



 

�

because�ultimately�we�need�to�deliver�the�pitch�need�figure�that�is�included�within�the�accommodation�

assessment,�which�is�included�within�the�core�strategy.���

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��The�greenbelt�site�is�a�temporary�one?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��No,�it�is�a�permanent�site�and�so�clearly�

we�will�have�to�demonstrate,�or�the�Planning�Inspector�will�have�to�be�persuaded,�if�they�are�to�approve,�that�

there�are�very�exceptional�circumstances�that�outweigh�the�harm�caused�to�the�greenbelt�by�the�proposed�

development.��We�have�put�forward�our�argument�as�to�what�those�very�exceptional�circumstances�are.��We�are�

aware�that�it�has�a�high�threshold�and�we�await�what�the�Planning�Inspector�and�the�Secretary�of�State’s�

decision�is.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��All�right.��I�would�like�to�know�what�John�Lett�thinks�about�that�if�we�were�to�follow�that�

in�London,�which�to�a�certain�extent�in�some�cases�it�has�been�followed.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��My�colleague�from�Kent�made�a�very�telling�observation�

that�Gypsies�and�Travellers�under�Government�policy�should�be�treated�in�the�same�way�as�the�settled�

population.��That�is�the�approach,�as�I�say,�with�the�five-year�supply,�and�also�in�connection�with�greenbelt�

development.��I�notice�it�is�not�mentioned�in�your�report�[at�Agenda�Item�6],�but�the�Government�is�currently�

consulting�on�revisions�to�national�policy�and�one�element�of�that�is�to�do�with�the�release�of�greenbelt�land.��

The�Secretary�of�State�is�equally�onerous�in�limiting�these�exceptional�circumstances�-�or�he�proposes�to�be�-�

for�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�community�as�he�is�with�the�settled�community.��As�you�will�be�aware�from�

previous�meetings,�it�is�a�challenge�for�London�as�a�whole�and�that�line�would�be�carried�through�under�the�

London�Plan�policy�also�to�the�local�level,�colleagues�in�Bromley�and�elsewhere.��Again,�this�is�a�challenge�in�

trying�to�address�need�for�what�is�essentially�a�low-density�form�of�housing.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��That�is�what�I�wanted�to�come�on�to�because�you�just�said�-�if�I�heard�you�correctly�-�that�

the�needs�of�this�community�have�to�be�considered�in�the�way�the�needs�for�any�housing�are�considered,�and�

yet�this�is,�as�you�just�mentioned,�low�density.��It�is�only�of�course�as�low�density�as�car-parking,�I�want�to�point�

out,�which�we�seem�to�be�quite�liberal�in�our�standards,�but�anyway.��Sorry,�just�answer�the�density�question,�

could�you?�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��The�density�question�you�have�picked�up�very�tellingly�in�

paragraph�4.8�of�your�report�[at�Agenda�Item�6]�and�all�I�am�doing�is�reiterating�the�report.��As�you�are�aware,�

again,�from�previous�meetings,�high-density�development�is�a�particular�concern�in�London.��The�average�is�in�

the�order�of�140.��I�cannot�remember�what�it�was�last�year�of�dwellings�per�hectare�exactly.��I�think�it�might�be�

137.��Land�here�would�be,�as�you�say,�able�to�accommodate�150.��We�have�the�greenbelt�issue�which�has�been�

raised�as�an�issue�in�Kent�and�in�Leeds.��Government�is�tightening�up�on�the�circumstances�where�we�could�

look�for�greenbelt�as�an�option.��I�have�to�put�this�in�the�context�of�a�need�for�49,000�homes,�of�an�identified�

supply�for�62,000�and�then�looking�at�major�initiatives�like�town�centre�renewal�and�building�at�particularly�

high�densities�in�opportunity�areas�to�be�able�to�meet�overall�need.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Yes,�and�that�is�paragraph�4.8�of�the�Committee�report�on�page�48�of�the�

main�agenda�that�John�was�referring�to.��Just�for�the�record,�John,�as�well,�can�I�ask�how�you�see�the�need�for�

sites�changing�in�the�next�few�years?�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��You�mean�relative�to�the�old�GTANA?�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Yes.�

Page 30



 

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��Just�as�a�technician,�as�a�piece�of�work,�that�is�a�study�

done�in�2008.��On�something�that�old,�looking�at�any�form�of�housing,�economic�demand�or�anything�like�that,�

we�would�look�to�refresh�something�that�was�done�in�2008,�not�least�it�was�at�the�peak�of�a�cycle�and�the�data�

behind�it,�from�what�I�can�remember�reflects�the�run-up�to�that�peak.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��OK,�thank�you.��We�had�points�raised�from�the�floor�earlier�on�about�funding�

and�I�am�keen�that�we�move�on�to�the�issue�of�funding�now.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Initially�to�the�GLA.��Only�about�a�third�of�the�Mayor’s�Traveller�Pitch�

Fund�has�been�spent.��How�many�boroughs�have�taken�up�that�funding�so�far?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��I�am�pleased�to�report�that�

actually�we�have�had�additional�allocation�since�we�last�updated�you�and�we�are�now�72%�allocated,�and�there�

is�another�potential�application�that�came�in�only�a�couple�of�days�ago�and�so�there�is�still�interest�which�is�live.�

�

In�terms�of�the�allocations�that�were�made,�there�are�five�different�boroughs�that�have�live�allocations�from�us.��

The�work�at�Barking�&�Dagenham�is�already�completed�and�then�three�other�boroughs�-�Lambeth,�Hounslow�

and�Sutton�-�are�due�to�complete�their�works�by�the�end�of�this�year.��The�funding�that�we�have�is�a�

combination�of�refurbishing�existing�pitches�and�providing�some�new�pitches.��It�is�just�telling,�looking�back�at�

the�statistics�I�have�-�that�we�wrote�to�you�about,�Tom�[Copley]�-�that�since�2008�there�have�been�four�new�

pitches�provided�across�London�with�Government�funding�and�in�this�year�we�will�be�providing�seven�new�

ones.��Seven�is�not�a�fantastic�number�--�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�is�still�very�low.�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��--�but�compared�to�

historical�performance�it�is�a�big�improvement.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��What�would�you�say�to�the�gentleman�over�there�from�Barking�&�

Dagenham�about�this�issue�of�the�two-year�cut-off�point?��I�am�not�sure�because�you�said�Barking�&�

Dagenham�has�completed�now,�but�then�--�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��Yes,�Barking�&�Dagenham�

had�funding�to�do�refurbishment�to�12�pitches�and�there�are�obviously�further�discussions�in�relation�to�a�new�

site.��The�issue�that�is�being�alluded�to�is�in�relation�to�the�time�limits�that�we�do�have�on�our�funding.��We�had�

funding�for�the�2011�to�2015�period�with�a�deadline�for�Affordable�Homes�Programme�completions�by�

March�2015�and�the�Traveller�Pitch�Funding�was�part�of�that.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Is�this�tied�up�with�the�Government?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��It�is�tied�up�to�the�

Government’s�timelines�and,�in�the�same�way�with�all�our�housing�programmes,�we�have�argued�that�fiscal�

devolution�would�enable�us�to�plan�on�a�longer-term�basis,�give�people�greater�certainty�in�terms�of�their�

funding�and�deliver�more�overall.��The�good�news�though�is�that�we�have�made�that�funding�available�in�the�

2015�to�2018�period�and,�although�there�is�still�a�time�limit�that�completions�will�need�to�be�achieved�by�

March�2018,�we�have�still�a�good�period�of�time�where�there�is�funding�available�and�we�could�allocate�it�to�

new�sites.��We�definitely�will�pick�up�that�point.�

�

Page 31



 

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��On�the�Affordable�Homes�Programme,�which�has�now�slipped,�it�is�going�

back�to�December�2015,�is�it�not?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��No,�within�the�Affordable�

Homes�Programme,�the�deadline�for�all�allocations�is�and�has�always�been�31�March�2015.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��That�was�my�understanding,�but�I�have�been�seeing�things�that�are�

coming�out�from�the�Mayor�now�saying�December�2015,�which�looked�like�a�bit�of�a�slippage�on�that.��Are�you�

saying�that�that�is�not�the�case?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��I�fear�we�are�getting�

side-tracked,�but�the�[Boris�Johnson’s�Mayoral�candidate]�manifesto�commitment�was�to�deliver�around�

55,000�homes�by�2015�and�that�is�being�given�its�normal�meaning,�in�other�words�the�2015�calendar�year.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��OK.��I�do�not�want�to�get�side-tracked�but�it�is�just�because�it�is�tied�up�

with�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�Pitch�Funding.��Why�do�you�think�boroughs�are�reluctant�to�bid?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��We�have�also�made�two�

other�allocations�and�that�was�referred�to�in�the�audience’s�comments.��Camden�had�an�initial�allocation�of�

£700,000�and�was�not�able�to�take�it�up.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�was�not�able�to�take�it�up,�yes.�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director�-�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�GLA):��Kensington�and�Chelsea�

also�had�an�allocation�and�then�they�had�problems�with�site�assembly�so�it�is�clear�that�bringing�this�together�

with�a�site�that�is�deliverable�and�with�local�support�is�very�challenging�for�local�authorities�to�deliver.��Our�

funding�can�help�with�that,�but�it�is�certainly�not�the�full�answer.��Listening�to�what�I�have�heard�it�seems�that�

land�is�one�of�the�key�challenges�in�looking�across�London�housing�as�a�whole,�that�land�is�obviously�a�key�

constraint�and�that�the�land�market�is�very�hot�at�the�moment.��It�is�very�valuable�and�it�is�difficult�to�acquire�

land�and�deliver�housing�on�it.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��This�is�where�I�will�bring�John�in.��Do�you�think�that�if�there�were�specific�

targets�within�the�London�Plan,�boroughs�would�be�knocking�on�the�door�for�funding�a�bit�more�regularly?�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��That�has�to�be�pure�conjecture.��We�have�never�had�that�

situation�before.��They�do�have�to�have�-�as�colleagues�from�the�LGTU�have�said�-�policies�already�in�their�

Local�Plans�so�that�the�numbers�are�there�and�the�targets�are�there.��For�the�Mayor�to�have�them�is�probably,�I�

would�say�--�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��You�may�as�well�say�the�Mayor�therefore�does�not�need�to�have�an�overall�

target�for�housing.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��No,�no,�that�--�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��You�may�as�well.��What�is�the�difference?�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��Of�course�not.��It�is�a�matter�of�scale,�sir,�surely.��A�need�

for�49,000�or�62,000�is�a�properly�strategic�matter�and�best�effectively�addressed�at�a�strategic�level.��A�need�

Page 32



 

�

for�somewhere�between�20�pitches�divided�by�33�boroughs�and�70-odd�divided�by�33�boroughs�is�a�different�

matter�of�scale.��It�is�a�matter�of�proportionality�when�you�come�to�using�targets.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Of�course�it�was�included�previously�until�2008�and�the�Planning�Inspector�

did�object�to�it�being�taken�out.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��Indeed,�the�Government�changed�its�policy�and�that�was�

why�the�Mayor�changed�his�policy.�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��I�was�going�to�ask�two�questions.��One�may�lead�you�a�bit�off-beam,�but�I�just�wanted�to�

remind�the�meeting�that�the�Mayor�has�in�the�GLA�Act�[1999]�an�equalities�duty.��I�just�want�to�remind�people�

of�that�because�it�should�form�part�of�the�record�of�this�meeting.��However�inconvenient�or�annoying�Travellers�

may�be�to�some�people,�they�are�human�beings�and�they�have�rights.�

�

The�second�point,�though�maybe�more�constructively�and�more�helpfully�-�although�hopefully�that�was�helpful�

as�well�-�is�whether�there�is�a�role�for�specialist�housing�providers�in�helping�to�nudge�up�these�targets�and�

whether�there�might�be�some�role�there�for�people�who�have�a�specialist�interest�who�can�act�as�advocates,�

who�can�secure�funding,�who�can�bring�good�practice�and�experience�and�who�could�help�to�nudge�boroughs�

and�others�towards�achieving�targets.�

�

John�Lett�(Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA):��On�the�equalities�duty,�the�Mayor�is�clearly�addressing�

those�both�in�the�London�Plan�and�in�the�Housing�Strategy.�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��To�date�all�of�our�funding�has�

been�provided�through�boroughs�themselves,�but�there�is�no�reason�that�that�has�to�be�the�case.��We�could�

provide�funding�to�housing�associations�or�other�organisations.��Indeed,�I�would�welcome�the�chance�to�do�so.��

Looking�back�at�historical�allocations�--�

�

John�Biggs�AM:��There�are�one�or�two�nationally�who�have�worked�in�this�area�and�can�add�some�real�value.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Your�fund�does�not�exclude�bids�from�others?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��Not�all,�and�I�am�aware�of�

housing�associations�providing�and�managing�sites�in�other�parts�of�the�country.��I�am�not�aware�of�national�

specialists.��I�am�happy�to�take�those�names.�

�

The�other�point�I�was�going�to�make�is�that�just�looking�back�at�all�the�allocations�that�have�been�made�in�

London�since�2001,�there�are�two�allocations�that�were�made�to�stock�transfer�housing�associations�in�

Richmond.��There�have�been�housing�associations�that�have�had�this�funding�in�the�past.��If�community�groups�

wanted�to�set�up�organisations�to�get�the�funding�and�deliver�it,�then�that�would�also�be�something�we�could�

do.���

�

I�was�going�to�pick�up�the�Camden�point�as�well,�where�the�funding�fell�away�because�it�had�to�complete�by�

March�2015.��We�now�have�that�funding�available�until�March�2018.��If�the�council�or�another�group�that�can�

to�deliver�that�site�wants�to�come�forward,�then�we�have�funding�available�and�can�help.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Jamie,�what�will�happen�to�the�remaining�funds�if�it�is�not�all�spent�by�

March�2015?��Do�we�lose�it?�

�

Page 33



 

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��No.��It�is�funding�that�is�

secured�for�London�for�affordable�housing�and�we�would�either�spend�it�on�more�affordable�housing�this�year�

or�roll�it�over�into�providing�affordable�housing�or�Gypsy�and�Traveller�provision�next�year.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�could�go�into�Gypsy�and�Traveller�provision�or�it�could�go�into�the�

general�pot�for�affordable�housing?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��For�affordable�housing,�yes.���

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Again,�on�this�point�about�the�two-year�flexibility,�given�you�are�keeping�

the�money�anyway,�there�is�no�way�you�can�be�more�flexible?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��Effectively�now�we�are�being�

more�flexible.��We�did�not�have�funding�certainty�beyond�2015.��We�could�not�provide�people�with�funding�at�

that�point.��The�point�until�2018�is�hitting�the�housing�targets�which�are�in�the�London�Housing�Strategy.��If�

we�can�hit�them�for�less�than�the�funding�that�we�have�available,�then�we�could�stretch�funding�beyond�2018,�

even�before�the�Government�gives�us�further�money�for�beyond�that�point.��The�constraint�on�us�is�that�we�

have�to�agree�targets�for�delivery�with�the�Government�and�we�have�set�them�out�in�the�London�Housing�

Strategy�for�specific�time�periods.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Do�you�know�what�funding�is�going�to�be�available�post�2015�for�Gypsy�

and�Traveller�sites?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��The�Government�has�given�us�

no�ring-fenced�funding,�but�we�are�willing�to�make�it�available�in�terms�of�how�much�demand�there�is�from�the�

£1.25�billion�that�we�have.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��You�now�say�it�is�a�72%�take�up.��Do�you�think�it�will�be�lower�given�that�

not�all�of�it�has�been�taken�up�this�time?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��Based�on�the�two�things�that�

we�have�heard�-�that�Barking�&�Dagenham�might�have�an�application�for�£2-3�million�and�that�there�might�be�

one�in�Camden�for�£700,000�-�that�would�suggest�it�is�significantly�more.��At�the�moment,�if�there�are�

deliverable�sites�that�offer�good�value�for�money�we�could�fund�those�schemes,�but�it�will�depend�on�what�

other�things�we�do�in�terms�of�allocating�that�funding�and�what�else�comes�forward�in�terms�of�affordable�

housing.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Gill,�can�I�ask�you�why�Bromley�did�not�apply�for�funding�from�the�Mayor?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��We�have�not�applied�for�funding�chiefly�

because�the�sites�we�are�looking�at�taking�forward,�although�the�greenbelt�issue�is�going�to�be�a�seriously�big�

problem�for�us,�are�private�sites.��These�are�sites�that�the�Travellers�themselves�own�and�they�are�keen�to�

maintain�them�at�their�own�cost.��We�may�well�be�looking�to�apply�for�funding�on�one�of�our�sites�that�we�are�

just�looking�at�redrawing�the�boundary�on,�just�because�at�the�moment�there�is�no�real�clarity�about�the�

boundary.��There�is�quite�a�big�bunding�area�out�to�open�land�and�we�will�define�that�boundary�a�bit�more�

clearly,�which�will�potentially�give�us�scope�for�another�couple�of�pitches.��Again,�though,�this�is�an�existing�site�

which�is�in�the�green�belt.��We�will�have�to�see�how�that�situation�evolves�or�where�it�takes�us�with�our�

proposals.�

�

Page 34



 

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��How�significant�and�important�do�you�think�the�funding�from�the�Mayor�

is?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��In�terms�of�Bromley’s�situation,�for�the�

majority�of�the�sites�it�is�not�relevant�at�all�because�they�are�quite�happy�to�fund�it.��With�our�own�site,�

certainly�we�will�be�looking�for�money�because,�otherwise,�making�good�of�the�boundary�will�appear�on�paper�

but�it�will�not�necessarily�be�followed�up�with�an�awful�lot.��There�is�not�a�huge�maintenance�budget�that�goes�

in�that�direction�and�so�it�would�be�very�useful.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��It�was�very�helpful�earlier�to�hear�about�experiences�from�the�audience�of�the�shortfall�

in�sites�from�personal�experiences.��It�would�be�worth�now�us�revisiting�that�and�hearing�both�from�the�local�

authorities�and�also�from�Ilinca�[Diaconescu]�about�the�impact�-�perhaps�citing�examples�of�the�impact�on�both�

the�local�community�and�also�the�Traveller�community�-�of�the�lack�of�space,�on�the�challenges�that�face�both,�

if�you�like,�the�indigenous�community�and�the�Travelling�community.��Perhaps�the�local�authorities�can�

comment�on�that�with�some�examples�of�how�it�has�been�affecting�your�own�authorities�and�perhaps�with�

some�specific�examples�on�things�like�public�services�and�that�sort�of�impact.���

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��In�2010,�Leeds�held�a�scrutiny�inquiry�

into�the�impact�of�unauthorised�encampments�of�Gypsies�and�Travellers.��Essentially,�back�in�2010�we�had�12�

predominately�Leeds-based�roadside�families�who�invariably�were�trespassing�on�public�land�because�of�their�

cultural�aversion�to�bricks-and-mortar�housing�but�also�because�of�an�absence�of�sites.��A�cycle�of�

encampment�and�eviction�then�ensued.���

�

In�terms�of�cost,�the�costs�of�dealing�with�unauthorised�encampments�were�approximately�£300,000�per�year,�

which�is�a�sizeable�amount�of�money�that�could�have�been�invested�in�other�Council�services,�and�there�was�lot�

of�tension�between�local�communities�and�the�Gypsies�and�Travellers’�families.��Finally,�we�were�not�meeting�

need,�either.�

�

Overall,�in�that�situation,�never�mind�in�terms�of�the�money,�but�all�it�did�was�compound�the�tensions�between�

the�local�authority�and�the�group�of�Gypsies�and�Travellers,�between�local�communities�and�Gypsies�and�

Travellers,�and�made�it�more�difficult�to�find�solutions.��Following�the�scrutiny�inquiry�then�there�was�a�political�

will�and�an�officer�will�to�move�things�forward.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��That�is�encouraging.��We�are�hoping�that�we�will�have�the�same�impact�here.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��What�you�are�saying�is�that�there�was�a�cost�through�social�cohesion,�in�essence,�

through�the�friction�between�both�communities.��We�will�get�onto�the�cost�to�the�community�itself.��Also,�there�

is�a�cost�to�the�budget,�presumably,�with�evictions�and�also�other�public�services.��That�is�one�of�the�triggers�

that�the�council�said,�“We�need�to�be�perhaps�more�progressive”.��I�know�we�are�going�to�hear�in�the�next�

round�of�questioning�the�sorts�of�things�that�perhaps�you�were�doing.���

�

What�about�Kent?��What�sorts�of�examples�have�you�had�in�Kent�as�a�result�of�a�problem�of�lack�of�sites,�

particularly�around�public�services,�cohesion�and�other�examples?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Can�I�divide�this�into�two�parts?��

One�part�is�a�shortage�of�accommodation�generally,�and�then�also�the�impact�of�the�situation�in�London�on�

Kent.���

�

Page 35



 

�

As�far�as�the�situation�generally�is�concerned,�we�have�fewer�unauthorised�encampments�now�than�we�had�ten�

years�ago.��Ten�years�ago�we�had�a�monitoring�system�set�up�for�authorising�encampments�and�we�had�

enormous�difficulties,�particularly�up�in�the�north�west�of�the�county�in�the�early�2000s.��We�monitored�280�

encampments�altogether�in�2004.��That�number�actually�fell�to�about�20%�of�that.��We�do�not�completely�

understand�why�that�happened.��It�has�now�gone�up,�particularly�during�the�summer�months.��I�do�not�have�

exact�data�yet�for�this�summer�but�we�have�had�quite�a�considerable�number�of�encampments.��We�are�talking�

probably�about�100�or�200�caravans�at�any�time�across�the�county�at�maximum.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��These�are�local�unpermitted�or�unsanctioned�camps?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Yes,�these�are�unauthorised�

encampments.��They�are�people�stopping�on�land�without�the�consent�of�the�owner.��The�team�that�I�head�up�

has�responsibility�for�all�those�on�County�Council�land.��That�includes�most�of�the�highways,�apart�from�the�

Highways�Agency�who�look�after�some�of�the�major�trunk�roads�and�motorways�and�so�on,�but�the�rest�of�that.��

A�lot�of�them�are�stopping�on�highway�land�or�highway�verges�or�whatever.��Our�team�is�actually�involved�in�

discussions�with�those�people,�giving�them�an�opportunity�to�apply�for�site�places�that�we�have�and�to�be�on�

the�waiting�list.��Some�directions�to�leave�are�taking�place.��In�some�cases�we�can�let�people�stay.���

�

We�actually�keep�the�figures�and�we�very�rarely�now�have�any�major�evictions.��There�used�to�be�major�

evictions�happening�and�they�are�very�costly�things.��Occasionally,�we�might�get�to�that�point.��Certainly�in�the�

early�2000s,�some�of�the�police�resources�they�had�to�use�for�some�of�the�encampments�were�very�substantial.��

We�work�very�closely�and�very�hard�with�the�police�to�take�down�the�number�of�section�61�directions�that�have�

been�given�and�to�reduce�the�temperature�and�to�be�making�proportionate�decisions�in�each�case.���

�

We�cannot�speak�for�every�other�landowner.��Private�landowners�are�not�covered�by�the�Human�Rights�Act�in�

the�same�way�the�County�Council�is.��We�make�decisions�on�the�basis�of�the�exact�merits�of�the�situation.���

�

All�the�time�we�are�thinking�about�reducing�impact.��We�actually�had�a�site�in�the�middle�of�Sittingbourne�

which�was�an�old�industrial�site�that�Travellers�themselves�found.��We�actually�finished�up�doing�a�quite�unique�

deal�with�Tesco.��Tesco�actually�lets�us�use�land�which�was�not�going�to�be�developed�as�a�supermarket�for�a�

couple�of�years�and�we�enabled�a�number�of�families�to�stop�there,�who�were�about�a�sixth�of�our�unauthorised�

encampments�around�the�county.��We�were�actually�looking�and�were�able�to�identify�who�had�the�most�

impact�in�terms�of�moving�around.���

�

That�is�quite�an�interesting�thing�to�develop.��It�is�the�possibility�of�a�business�or�a�number�of�businesses�

protecting�the�interests�of�other�businesses�if�people�are�moving�around�an�area.��That�clearly�was�something�

Tesco�was�getting�brownie�points�from�the�local�borough�council�about�for�making�this�arrangement.��We�

managed�it�and�it�prevented�lots�of�families�being�moved�around�the�same�town�at�much�greater�cost.���

�

In�Kent�-�and�you�quoted�from�Leeds�having�very�high�costs�of�moving�people�-�we�have�not�had�the�high�cost�

of�moving�people,�but�we�try�to�work�on�the�basis�of�dealing�with�everyone�individually.��When�we�monitored�

ten�years�ago,�80%�of�the�unauthorised�encampments�had�caused�no�significant�problems.��It�was�only�20%�

that�did.��There�is�not�a�direct�correlation�with�crime,�although�people�may�think�there�is.��There�is�not�a�direct�

correlation�with�crime.��Sometimes�you�get�very�difficult�people�on�encampments,�but�that�is�not�the�norm.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��We�will�get�on�to�Bromley.��It�is�not�just�necessarily�talking�about�the�costs�of�moving�

on�or�eviction.��There�may�be�other�public�service�costs�--�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Yes,�there�are.�

Page 36



 

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��--�perhaps�around�housing�when�good�people�are�being�housed�in�bricks-and-mortar�

when�they�actually�do�not�want�to�be.��That,�of�course,�has�an�opportunity�cost�to�your�waiting�list�because�

there�are�others�who�may�want�that.�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Can�I�just�talk�about�the�impact�

of�what�is�going�on�in�London�on�Kent?��We�have�families�coming�out,�not�usually�on�to�unauthorised�

encampments�but�certainly�onto�unauthorised�developments,�as�a�direct�result�of�there�not�being�provision�in�

London.��For�example,�there�is�one�large�south�London�site�and�I�can�name�half�a�dozen�families�who�moved�

and�bought�land�in�Kent�because�there�is�not�the�opportunity�and�there�is�no�provision�being�made.��We�might�

say�also�they�like�Kent�and�have�moved�out.��However,�that�is�some�of�the�impact.���

�

We�have�a�rising�number�of�public�provision�pitches�but�in�London�it�is�falling.��There�is�a�connection.��I�am�

sure�that�other�Home�Counties�would�say�the�same�thing.��There�is�an�impact�in�terms�of�movement�that�is�

taking�place.���

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��Gill,�that�might�be�your�borough.��Do�you�want�to�give�me�some�examples�of�costs?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��I�do�not�think�it�is�our�borough.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��I�am�sure�it�is�not,�but�maybe�the�cost�in�Bromley�to�the�public�purse�that�could�be�

avoided�with�better�sites?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��The�costs�in�Bromley�are�exactly�as�Rob�

[McCartney]�has�mentioned:�the�costs�of�going�through�the�processes�of�moving�people�on�through�the�proper�

processes�and�significant�clean-up�activities�as�well�for�the�unauthorised�encampments,�although,�as�Bill�

[Forrester]�mentioned,�they�are�not�necessarily�always�travelling.��Sometimes�they�are�visits.��It�is�not�

necessarily�a�sign�of�homelessness.��Sometimes�they�are�just�moving�from�place�to�place.���

�

The�unauthorised�encampments�we�tend�to�get�in�Bromley�are�families�who�crop�up�from�time�to�time�but�

clearly�are�based�in�neighbouring�authorities.��That�is�the�thing�with�London.��The�borders�are�very�porous�and�

the�families�might�stray�into�Bromley�but�actually�most�of�the�time,�be�it�in�permanent�pitches�or�possibly�

without�any�base,�tend�to�come�from�other�boroughs.��That�is�why,�I�suppose,�we�have�not�taken�them�

significantly�into�account�in�our�needs�assessment.���

�

We�note�the�unauthorised�encampments�but�they�do�not�tend�to�be�people�who�have�an�intention�to�reside�

long-term�in�Bromley.��They�are�usually�put�up�on�parks.��There�are�a�few�situations�of�private�land�and�then,�

absolutely,�the�private�landowners�tend�to�take�those�matters�into�their�own�hands.��On�parks,�of�course,�the�

cost�there�is�not�just�the�financial�cost�of�clearing�up�but�the�cost�to�the�local�community�of�not�using�that�

park�and�the�tensions�that�build�up�because�they�cannot�use�the�park.��One�of�the�attempts�to�prevent�

unauthorised�incursions,�which�is�a�far�from�attractive�option�but�has�happened�in�a�number�of�parks,�is�to�

install�barriers.��There�is�the�cost�of�barriers�and�the�unsightliness�of�barriers�simply�to�make�sure�that�there�

cannot�be�access�at�certain�times�on�to�the�park.��

�

The�community�tension�is�the�real�tricky�one.��When�it�comes�to�finding�sites,�probably�the�Travellers�

themselves�who�have�wanted�to�get�sites�have�self-selected�away�from�the�residential�areas�to�avoid�some�of�

those�tensions.��There�was�discussion�earlier�about�how�when�sites�were�put�forward�there�was�surprisingly�not�

so�much�concern�as�was�anticipated.��We�found�that�with�our�tolerated�sites�that�have�been�there�for�ten�years.��

When�we�actually�reached�the�stage�of�thinking,�“We�need�to�deal�with�this�situation�and�the�way�forward�is�to�

make�these�tolerated�sites�permanent�and�put�it�forward�in�a�consultation�document”,�in�fact�there�was�

Page 37



 

�

virtually�no�comeback�whatsoever�from�local�residents.��There�was�not.��There�were�a�few�representations�

generally�about�use�of�the�greenbelt,�but�there�was�not�the�local�tension�with�sites�that�were�already�in�use�

being�made�permanent.��I�know�I�have�gone�off�track�a�bit�there�but�I�just�wanted�to�make�that�point.���

�

With�regard�to�the�impact�on�Gypsies�and�Travellers�themselves,�not�for�unauthorised�necessarily�but�for�the�

tolerated�sites,�the�tolerated�sites�are�in�a�difficult�position�because�they�are�in�the�greenbelt�but�cannot�apply�

for�utility�buildings.��Where�you�have�members�of�the�family�who�have�sickness�and�the�elderly,�they�need�

those�utility�blocks.��There�is�a�problem�for�both�the�housed�community�and�the�Traveller�community�of�not�

having�sufficient�provision.�

�

In�terms�of�the�costs,�I�would�definitely�say�that�the�financial�cost�is�always�there�but�the�biggest�cost�is�the�

impact�on�community�cohesion.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��What�we�do�not�have�today�is�the�cost�to�the�private�purse,�Chair.��We�have�examples�

of�the�local�authorities,�but�we�have�heard�that�where�there�is�illegal�encampment�on�non-borough�land�for�our�

records.��For�the�record�itself,�there�needs�to�be�a�note�that�actually�there�is�some�private�cost.��I�do�not�want�

to�dwell;�we�have�dwelt�enough�on�that.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��What�I�would�like�to�do�is�turn�to�Ilinca.��We�have�heard�from�colleagues�here�about�

costs�to�the�education�of�the�families�and�the�health�costs�to�the�families�themselves�because�they�are�not�

getting�proper�health�treatment,�perhaps.��Tell�me�about�the�effect�on�the�Travelling�community�itself.��We�

have�heard�already�personal�examples.��Your�perception�of�the�effect�on�the�Travelling�community�itself�and�

the�cost�to�the�Travellers�themselves�of�lack�of�sites�in�London;�give�me�some�details�around�that.�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�London�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit):��One�of�the�biggest�effects�of�not�

having�enough�sites�is�increasing�social�exclusion.��The�community�feels�this.��A�lot�of�times�they�talk�about�

why�there�are�not�any�new�sites�being�built.��Why�have�no�new�sites�been�built�in�London�in�the�last�20�or�30�

years?��They�see�a�lot�of�development�going�on�around�them.��A�lot�of�people�put�forward�site�proposals�to�the�

councils�and�they�are�always�being�turned�back,�not�in�the�sense�of�a�planning�application�but�they�would�

suggest�sites�that�they�have�seen�that�have�been�vacant�for�dozens�of�years.��The�response�is�almost�always,�

“That�site�cannot�be�used�as�a�Traveller�site”.��Then�development�happens�all�around�them�so�they�feel�like�

they�are�not�part�of�society�and�that�they�are�not�treated�the�same.��People�talk�about�that�and�they�have�that�

impression,�even�when�they�make�efforts�to�integrate�with�the�rest�of�the�community.���

�

Secondly,�there�is�a�lot�of�displacement�happening�due�to�a�shortage�of�site�provision�where�new�families�form�

on�sites�and�obviously�there�are�no�pitch�vacancies.��Some�of�them�are�being�made�offers�for�council�housing�

or�emergency�accommodation�if�they�get�onto�that�route.��Most�of�the�time�those�are�out�of�the�borough�that�

they�grew�up�in�and�even�outside�of�London.��Families�are�effectively�ripped�apart.��If�you�recognise�that�family�

is�central,�it�is�one�of�the�most�important�things�for�Gypsies�and�Travellers�and�the�isolation�and�impacts�on�

health�-�mental�health�especially�-�that�come�from�being�torn�apart�from�your�family�and�being�placed�into�an�

environment�where�you�do�not�feel�you�are�accepted�are�huge.���

�

In�terms�of�health�and�education,�again,�it�is�the�effect�of�being�moved�around�against�your�will,�in�a�way.��It�is�

not�the�same�as�when�people�choose�to�travel.��This�is�actually�being�evicted�or�forced�to�move�into�a�type�of�

accommodation�you�cannot�live�in.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��The�Travelling�community,�if�they�are�truly�travelling,�would�have�challenges�around�

settled�education�just�caused�by�the�nature�of�travelling.�

�

Page 38



 

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�London�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit):��Sure.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��I�guess�they�would�manage�it�around�their�plans�of�travelling.��I�am�guessing�here.�

�

Ilinca�Diaconescu�(Planning�Policy,�London�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit):��Yes,�but�travelling�in�the�sense�

that�it�used�to�happen�back�in�the�day�does�not�happen�anymore�because�people�cannot�really�travel.��They�are�

not�allowed�to.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��For�the�education�and�health�of�your�family,�you�would�be�happy�to�have�a�settled�site�

and�then�look�after�your�children�from�that�settled�site?�

�

Anne�Marie�O’Brien�(from�the�floor):��Yes,�100%,�I�would�be.�

�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��OK.��Thank�you.��That�is�very�helpful.���

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��We�have�clarified�that�and�that�was�a�useful�point�because,�while�the�culture�

has�moved�away�from�actually�travelling�to�settled�sites,�you�need�sites�that�can�still�accommodate�and�sustain�

that�culture�rather�than�disregard�it�entirely.�

�

Anne�Marie�O’Brien�(from�the�floor):��Yes,�it�is�our�culture.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��That�has�been�a�really�useful�point�and�a�point�well�made.��There�was�a�lot�in�

the�discussion�from�the�floor�at�the�start�of�the�meeting�of�examples�of�best�practice�and�so�on.��We�are�

looking�now�at�good�practice�in�working�with�the�Gypsy�and�Travelling�community.���

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Rob,�we�have�covered�some�of�this�already.��You�obviously�have�a�

successful�scheme�for�temporary�tolerated�sites.��How�do�you�find�a�site?��What�is�the�process?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��We�have�an�existing�kind�of�tolerated�

negotiated�stopping�site�for�the�Leeds-based�roadside�Travellers.��We�have�had�that�since�the�beginning�of�

May�this�year.��We�have�had�two�previous�tolerated�sites�where�that�group�of�Travellers�has�moved�on�to�the�

site,�but�essentially�we�have�effectively�just�allowed�them�to�stay�there�rather�than�putting�any�investment�or�

putting�any�emphasis�on�making�it�a�viable�site.��This�is�the�first�time�that�we�have�really�made�a�conscious�

effort�to�make�things�work�for�as�long�as�possible.���

�

The�site�itself�is�close�to�the�city�centre�and�it�had�been�left�empty�for�the�best�part�of�30�years.��It�had�a�sign�

for�the�West�Yorkshire�County�Council�on�it�which�was�disbanded�in�1985.��That�is�how�long�that�site�had�been�

unused.��There�could�not�really�be�a�credible�argument�that�alternative�development�was�pending�or�was�

impending�on�that�site.��That�was�the�first�thing�that�we�did.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��That�was�owned�by�the�Council?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��It�is�owned�by�the�Council.��Since�the�

Travellers�have�moved�on�to�the�site,�in�comparison�to�the�previous�year�when�we�did�not�have�a�tolerated�site�

in�2013,�in�the�period�May�to�September�we�have�had�a�two-thirds�reduction�in�the�number�of�unauthorised�

encampments.��That�is�a�two-thirds�reduction�in�the�number�of�possession�actions�that�we�need�to�take,�a�

two-thirds�reduction�in�terms�of�the�clean-up�costs�and�also�all�the�other�benefits�from�Council�members�of�

staff�who�would�be�involved�in�taking�the�possession�action�or�cleaning�up�unauthorised�encampment�sites.��

Page 39



 

�

They�can�do�other�things.��At�a�very�clear�level,�the�litter-pickers�who�were�cleaning�up�after�unauthorised�

encampments�can�clean�up�the�streets�of�Leeds.��There�are�so�many�wins�there.�

�

We�are�anticipating�that�if�it�cost�us�£300,000�a�year�when�we�were�simply�evicting�the�Travellers,�we�believe�

we�will�see�a�two-thirds�reduction�in�the�costs�associated�with�unauthorised�encampments.��In�the�current�

financial�climate�that�is�a�significant�amount�of�money�that�can�be�reinvested�in�other�services.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��What�was�the�reaction�from�people�in�Leeds�and�other�communities?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��One�of�the�really�crucial�things�is�that�

we�cannot�determine�Travellers’�behaviour�by�what�has�occurred�on�unauthorised�encampments.��Whilst�you�

cannot�wholly�mitigate�antisocial�behaviour�or�things�of�that�ilk,�ultimately,�if�you�are�going�to�get�evicted�

within�a�matter�of�days,�why�should�you�put�an�investment�into�a�particular�site?��What�we�found�since�the�

Travellers�have�gone�on�the�current�tolerated�site�is�an�almost�universal�adherence�to�the�toleration�

agreements�we�have�set�up�and�a�willingness�to�engage�with�the�local�communities�and�with�local�business.��

We�have�looked�at�the�latest�crime�figures�and�reported�crime�statistics�have�actually�gone�down�in�that�

particular�area.��Bill�[Forrester]�alluded�to�it�earlier�on�and�certainly�it�is�relevant�from�a�planning�perspective�as�

well�that�perception�is�often�not�realised�in�terms�of�the�reality.��A�Gypsy�and�Traveller�site�is�not�by�definition�

going�to�cause�crime�and�antisocial�behaviour.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Absolutely.�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��We�have�learned�an�awful�lot.��There�

are�a�lot�of�costs�and�there�also�benefits�associated�with�our�engagement�with�the�Gypsies�and�Travellers.��It�

also�gives�us�food�for�thought�in�terms�of�how�readily�Gypsies�and�Travellers�can�integrate�into�the�wider�

community�as�well.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�sounds�excellent.��Could�it�work�in�London?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��Those�principles�apply�across�the�

board.��The�notion�of�‘not�in�my�back�yard’�and�that�we�will�continue�to�evict�and�continue�to�move�people�

around�perhaps�might�have�political�benefits,�but�it�is�not�a�very�sensible�approach�for�managing�budgets.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��It�is�not�a�long-term�approach.�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��Also,�the�statements�that�have�been�

made�by�the�Gypsies�and�Travellers�here�echo�the�views�of�Gypsies�and�Travellers�in�Leeds.��They�want�

somewhere�to�live�where�they�can�express�their�culture.��If�they�are�given�that,�then�more�often�than�not�things�

work�out�quite�well.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Excellent.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��The�financial�benefits�for�the�authority�in�pursuing�that�sort�of�approach�are�

clear�compared�with�a�move-on�and�eviction�approach?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��If�nothing�more,�if�that�is�the�only�

positive,�what�everyone�can�take�is�that�a�policy�of�encampment�and�eviction�and�of�not�putting�in�place�

development�makes�very�little�financial�sense.�

�

Page 40



 

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Is�it�sustainable�in�the�long-term?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��At�this�site�we�are�looking�for�them�to�

stay�for�one�year.��We�have�applied�for�planning�permission�and�we�are�looking�for�one�year.��What�we�are�

looking�to�do�is�to�demonstrate�that�finding�housing�solutions�for�Gypsies�and�Travellers�works.��It�works�for�

the�city�as�a�whole.��Essentially,�if�we�can�get�this�year,�then�that�buys�us�time�to�find�other�alternatives.��It�also�

will�hopefully�shape�the�debate�about�where�we�go�from�here�in�terms�of�long-term�Gypsy�and�Traveller�

housing�needs;�so�yes,�it�is�sustainable.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��To�bring�in�John�[Lett]�and�Jamie,�do�you�think�this�sort�of�scheme�would�

be�workable�in�London?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��I�have�to�say�that�I�have�no�

idea�what�the�average�expenditure�is�by�individual�London�boroughs�on�moving�people�on�from�unauthorised�

encampments.��If�there�are�opportunities�to�make�those�kinds�of�savings,�then�possibly�it�could.��At�a�

London-wide�level,�obviously,�we�are�not�incurring�those�costs.�

�

Tom�Copley�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��Gill�might�have�something�to�add�on�whether,�Gill,�you�think�the�scheme�

is�something�that�would�work.�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��Certainly�anything�that�reduces�the�costs�and�

cuts�down�the�problems�that�it�brings�about�with�community�cohesion�is�absolutely�a�positive.��The�difficulty�

with�London�is�probably�the�one�I�alluded�to�earlier�about�the�porous�borders.��As�an�authority,�we�could�

probably�see�the�benefits�and�certainly�officers�who�do�that�face-to-face�work�with�the�Travellers�on�

unauthorised�encampments.��It�is�not�a�pleasant�experience�for�anybody,�Council�employees�or�Travellers.��If�

there�was�somewhere�that�they�could�be�moved�on�to,�it�is�better�for�the�families�concerned.��There�are�lots�of�

reasons�why�it�seems�like�a�very�good�and�straightforward�answer.��The�problem�with�the�borough�boundaries�

is�where�the�issue�falls�down.���

�

As�I�say,�at�the�moment�we�do�have�8�to�12�unauthorised�encampment�incidents�a�year,�which�is�not�a�huge�

number.��Other�boroughs�will�have�similar�numbers.��Whilst�we�have�our�own�issue�about�dealing�with�

Travellers�based�in�the�borough,�we�are�looking�for�sites.��We�have�already�discussed�how�we�might�have�

problems�with�that,�which�may�or�may�not�lead�us�to�have�to�look�for�further�sites,�which�will�be�difficult�

enough.��Then,�to�provide�a�site�which�may�be�perceived�as�one�that�then�potentially�would�draw�in�

unauthorised�encampments�from�our�very�near�neighbouring�boroughs,�people�on�the�roads�there,�would�see�

that�as�far�more�preferable,�obviously,�to�the�streets�in�a�neighbouring�borough.��Yes,�you�can�see�why�for�

Leeds,�as�a�standalone�city�it�works,�yes.��There�definitely�will�be�challenges,�politically�and�locally,�to�make�it�

work�to�prevent�there�being�further�intensification�in�any�one�particular�borough.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you.��Jamie,�did�you�want�to�come�back�on�this�quickly?�

�

Jamie�Ratcliff�(Assistant�Director,�Programme,�Policy�&�Services,�GLA):��Just�a�brief�point�about�good�

practice�in�other�places�and�something�that�Rob�[McCartney]�said�earlier�about�the�needs�assessment�they�

carried�out�and�how�they�put�the�community�at�the�heart�of�it�and�were�able�to�engage�really�strongly�locally.��

That�sounds�like�quite�good�practice.��The�wider�approach,�when�they�did�it�on�a�west�Yorkshire�level,�had�not�

worked.��It�is�reinforcing�my�point�that�if�we�tried�to�do�that�very�community-based�engagement�on�a�

pan-London�basis,�I�just�do�not�think�we�are�placed�to�do�it,�but�perhaps�individual�boroughs�could�learn�from�

that�approach.�

�

Page 41



 

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thanks�for�that.��I�am�keen�to�get�a�couple�of�contributions�from�the�floor�on�

this.��Could�the�Leeds�scheme�work�in�London?�

�

Debby�Kennett�(from�the�floor):��Absolutely.��This�has�happened�in�London.��More�than�ten�years�ago�in�

Hackney,�as�an�example,�it�was�similar�to�the�role�that�Leeds�GATE�took�with�working�with�the�council�and�the�

community.��We�worked�with�Travellers�who�were�on�unauthorised�encampments�in�Hackney�and�worked�with�

the�landowner,�the�council,�the�police�and�the�community�in�doing�exactly�the�example�that�was�given�around�

looking�at�land�that�was�suitable.��With�agreement�with�the�landowner,�we�actually�had�a�clear�toleration�

agreement�that�the�families�signed�up�to.��That�slowed�down�the�evictions�and�allowed�children�to�go�to�

school.��Camps�were�left�there�for�a�period�of�time�with�an�agreement�from�the�families�that�when�that�land�

was�needed�for�development,�they�would�leave.��That�is�exactly�what�they�did�and�the�sites�were�left�spotless.�

�

Also�in�Hackney,�the�key�point�is�what�Rob�[McCartney]�said,�which�was�about�political�and�officer�

commitment,�both�from�a�political�level�in�the�council�and�at�an�officer�level�working�with�the�community.��The�

opposite�also�happened�in�Hackney�over�the�last�couple�of�years,�where�there�was�a�group�of�about�eight�

families�who�were�moving�around�and�facing�constant�evictions.��In�supporting�the�families,�we�wrote�to�the�

Mayor�of�Hackney�and�said,�“We�are�not�trying�to�cause�a�nuisance.��Please�could�you�work�with�us�in�

identifying�suitable�pieces�of�land?”��Land�was�clearly�vacant,�up�for�development,�but�not�being�used�maybe�

for�a�period�of�six�months�or�a�year�or�less.��They�were�happy�to�move�on�to�those�pieces�of�land,�have�some�

basic�services�and�some�toilets�and�agree�to�leave�when�that�land�was�needed�for�development.��However,�

there�was�not�the�political�commitment�to�that�or�the�interest�and�so�that�led�to�maybe�about�15�evictions�in�

the�course�of�a�year�and�more�than�£20,000�spent�by�the�council.��There�is�both�good�and�bad�practice.���

�

It�absolutely�can�work�in�London�because�there�are�vacant�sites�there�that�are�earmarked�for�development�to�

slow�down�evictions.��The�point�is�that�if�you�are�talking�about�the�needs�of�children,�once�the�evictions�have�

slowed�down,�children�can�access�schools.��That�particular�group�of�families�in�Hackney�continually�took�their�

children�back�to�the�same�schools�but�it�was�very�difficult�and�children�did�miss�out�on�education�because�of�

the�constant�evictions.��Education�and�health�is�a�key�thing�when�you�are�talking�about�impact.�

�

Marian�Mahoney�(from�the�floor):��I�am�33�years�an�activist�and�33�years�ago�I�was�at�the�side�of�the�road�

in�Old�Ford�in�east�London.��We�liaised�with�Ken�Livingstone�[former�Vice�Chairman�of�the�Greater�London�

Council�Housing�Management�Committee]�and�some�of�the�members�of�his�political�group.��We�had�our�own�

site�built�in�Tower�Hamlets,�which�we�have�just�left�at�the�moment�because�Crossrail�has�taken�it�over�for�a�new�

shaft.��We�negotiated�a�new�site.��When�we�were�getting�evicted�from�our�site�that�we�had�been�in�for�33�years�

and�we�were�told�by�Crossrail,�“Get�all�your�trailers�and�your�tow�bars�and�go”,�we�negotiated.��I�personally�

myself�went�with�a�petition�from�19�residents�to�the�Houses�of�Parliament.��That�left�us�with�a�new�site�in�Old�

Willow�Close.���

�

I�have�lived�33�years�in�my�own�culture�in�Eleanor�Street.��We�have�practiced�our�own�culture�where�we�have�

our�morals�and�we�have�different�ways�to�other�people,�yes,�but�it�has�worked�for�33�years�at�Eleanor�Street�

and�it�has�worked�for�the�last�500�years.��We�have�always�negotiated.��We�have�always�integrated.��I�have�three�

of�my�family�married�into�a�settled�community.��It�is�not�a�load�of�codswallop,�as�settled�people�will�call�it.��We�

do�integrate.���

�

What�I�find�is�that�between�the�Mayor,�the�Travellers�and�the�councils,�there�is�a�lack�of�communication.��If�

there�was�more�communication,�we�would�not�be�sitting�here�today.��I�really�believe�that�you�have�plenty�of�

experience�from�Travellers�living�in�London.��You�should�pick�up�the�old�consultation�reports�because�I�have�

been�a�part�of�many�of�them�over�the�years.��I�have�not�missed�one.��You�should�go�back�and�look�at�what�they�

have�spent�hundreds�and�thousands�of�pounds�on�with�research�and�learn�from�that.��I�actually�think�that�the�

Page 42



 

�

experience�is�there.��They�just�do�not�look�for�it.��Every�time�there�is�a�consultation,�it�comes�up�by�the�time�

the�Government�has�changed�and�everything�goes�back�to�square�one�again.��It�is�nothing�but�a�complete�

waste�of�money�to�the�taxpayers.��Everything�is�laid�there.��It�is�just�to�be�picked�up�where�we�left�off�and�learn�

from�it.��Thank�you�very�much�for�listening�to�us.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much�for�that.��Dialogue�and�negotiation�at�the�local�level�are�

obviously�essential.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��I�want�to�ask�about�the�way�in�which�pitches�are�allocated�and�waiting�lists.��We�have�

heard�a�certain�amount�of�scepticism�about�whether�waiting�lists�are�operated�in�some�cases�or�not�and�

whether�or�not�they�are�ignored.��Perhaps�I�can�ask�our�local�authority�representatives�here�to�say�what�you�do�

in�terms�of�allocation�of�empty�pitches�and�waiting�lists�and�how�you�operate�that.��Gill,�do�you�want�to�start�

off?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��I�am�going�to�have�to�check�this�because�I�am�

a�planner�rather�than�a�housing�officer.��We�certainly�do�have�a�waiting�list.��Currently�we�have�four�people�on�

the�waiting�list.��There�are�four�applications�and�they�are�not�individuals;�they�can�be�families.��One�of�them�at�

least�is�from�someone�in�Kent.��They�are�on�the�waiting�list�until�such�time�as�a�pitch�becomes�free�and�then�

there�are�criteria�which�determine�who�from�that�waiting�list�will�then�get�a�pitch.��It�is�not�that�the�first�on�the�

list�gets�the�pitch.���

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Perhaps�you�can�let�us�have�a�copy�of�your�criteria?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��Yes,�certainly.��Overcrowding�and�vulnerability�

are�mentioned.��Yes,�I�can�certainly�send�that.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��The�other�issue,�if�you�could�comment�on�it,�is�whether�or�not�existing�pitch�owners�on�

that�site�get�a�say�or�are�consulted�in�terms�of�who�the�vacant�pitch�is�allocated�to.�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��To�be�honest,�most�of�the�applications�tend�to�

come�from�people�within�the�pitches�and�people�within�the�sites.��To�some�extent,�yes,�there�are�occasions�

when�certainly�there�are�mixes�of�families�that�come�together�on�one�site�and�that�is�troublesome.��The�people�

on�the�pitch�do�not�get�the�final�say,�but�often�the�need�comes�from�overcrowding�on�the�site�in�the�first�place�

and�they�are�already�part�of�the�family.��Certainly�one�of�our�sites�is�significantly�one�large�extended�family.���

�

Then�the�private�pitches�that�we�are�looking�to�allocate�are�their�own�pitches�and�they�are�their�own.��We�do�

not�have�a�role�in�allocating�them.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Thank�you.��Rob,�could�you�comment�on�what�you�do�in�Leeds?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��We�have�a�housing�register�for�Gypsies�

and�Travellers�which�runs�in�parallel�with�the�allocation�scheme�that�we�run�for�council�housing�across�the�city.��

Essentially,�households�have�an�assessment�of�their�housing�need�and�they�are�given�the�relevant�priority�

preference,�reasonable�preference,�for�rehousing�that�reflects�their�housing�need.��Invariably�Gypsies�and�

Travellers�who�are�living�on�the�roadside,�doubling�up�with�family�members�or�living�in�bricks-and-mortar�

housing�but�have�a�cultural�aversion�to�conventional�housing�are�awarded�some�level�of�preference.��Certainly�

if�they�have�dependent�children�or�include�a�pregnant�woman�they�will�be�deemed�to�be�statutorily�homeless�

with�the�accompanying�housing�duty�which�we�will�only�discharge�through�a�suitable�housing�offer.�

�

Page 43



 

�

I�know�we�talked�about�people�who�sometimes�move�into�conventional�housing.��Clearly�we�need�to�assess�

each�case�on�its�individual�merits,�but�essentially�if�someone�moved�in�who�we�have�decided�has�a�cultural�

aversion,�they�are�statutorily�homeless.��Even�if�they�moved�temporarily�into�bricks-and-mortar�housing,�we�

would�consider�that�was�not�a�suitable�offer�to�discharge�the�housing�duty�owed�to�them.��We�would�retain�

that�housing�duty�pending�a�pitch�becoming�available.��They�could�live�in�the�conventional�housing�until�a�

pitch�became�available.��There�is�a�lot�more�to�it�than�that,�but�essentially�that�is�it�in�summary.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Does�your�allocation�policy�try�to�ensure�that�extended�families�can�be�accommodated�

on�the�same�site�or�does�that�not�come�into�it?�

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��More�often�than�not,�the�Gypsies�and�

Travellers�will�decide�that�themselves.��They�may�say�that�an�offer�of�a�pitch�is�not�suitable�because�it�may�not�

be�on�the�site�that�they�want�to�be.���

�

Because�I�have�a�wider�role�in�terms�of�housing�need,�I�am�not�a�great�believer�in�discharging�a�housing�duty�to�

a�household�when�they�refuse�an�offer.��Ultimately�we�have�awarded�the�housing�priority�on�the�basis�that�they�

have�unmet�housing�need�and�that�unmet�housing�need�is�still�there.��It�is�a�lot�easier�for�me�to�take�such�an�

approach�in�an�authority�like�Leeds,�perhaps.��For�people�who�work�in�homelessness�and�allocations�in�London�

it�might�be�more�difficult�for�them�to�adopt�such�a�policy,�but�certainly�we�can�in�Leeds.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Thank�you.��Bill,�can�you�comment�on�Kent’s�approach?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��Yes.��We�have�had�a�waiting�list�

since�1996�that�was�at�that�time�entirely�based�on�need�and�had�no�connection�with�how�long�people�had�

been�on�the�list.��We�then�overhauled�it.��We�had�a�very�sizeable�consultation�a�couple�of�years�ago.��At�that�

time�we�had�support�for�having�no�limits�to�the�waiting�list.��Interestingly�enough,�we�have�had�applications�

from�considerable�numbers�of�families�in�London,�mainly�south�London�boroughs,�but�going�up�to�Haringey�

and�so�on,�particularly�for�new�pitches�that�we�had�on�the�new�site�development.��We�had�17�new�pitches�and�

we�had�over�70�applications�altogether.��We�have�learned�a�great�deal�through�that�process�to�do�with�changes�

we�are�going�to�make.��We�are�going�to�review�the�whole�allocation�process�in�the�spring�of�next�year.��We�are�

very�rigorous�about�who�gets�offered.��We�are�very�resistant�to�people�finding�ways�on�to�sites�in�order�to�try�

to�take�over�pitches�or�to�plan�ways�of�doing�it.���

�

Do�we�consult�with�other�people?��We�inform�people�and�we�keep�in�close�touch�if�there�are�clashes�between�

families.��We�have�actually�had�to�deal�with�some�quite�tricky�issues�recently�around�an�incident�on�another�site�

and�people’s�fears�and�concerns�about�it.��We�are�careful.��If�issues�do�break�out�between�families,�then�we�

would�want�to�be�involved�with�that.��We�are�increasingly�getting�people,�I�am�glad�to�say,�reporting�such�

things�-�whereas�in�the�past�we�did�not�get�that�-�and�actually�sometimes�involving�the�police�and�so�on�in�

dealing�with�some�of�these�issues.�

�

We�try�to�resist�the�idea�that�a�site�belongs�to�a�few�families.��We�have�been�working�with�a�number�of�families�

for�about�the�last�five�years�and�encouraging�them�to�believe�in�the�benefits�of�having�wider�communities.��I�

am�glad�to�say�I�am�making�some�progress�now.��If�you�go�to�a�group�of�families�who�are�all�from�the�same�

family�on�a�site�then�it�can�be�quite�inward�looking.��We�are�actually�looking�at�sustainable�communities.��We�

are�looking�at�reasonable�preference�for�everybody�on�our�list.��We�had�to�get�the�council’s�opinion�on�what�we�

were�doing�for�the�new�big�Coldharbour�site�because�the�local�borough�council�wanted�to�have�a�priority�for�

local�connection.��We�have�a�slightly�different�allocation�policy�for�that�site�to�favour�local�connection�than�we�

do�for�other�sites�that�we�allocate.���

�

Page 44



 

�

We�always�have�to�make�sure�that�anyone�on�our�list�stands�some�chance�of�getting�an�offer�and�that�they�

should�be�considered�fairly.��We�are�actually�now�getting�feedback�from�Travellers�saying,�“We�might�have�

been�turned�down�but�we�know�your�system�is�fair”,�and�that�is�good�to�hear�back.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��That�is�good�to�hear.��The�final�element�of�the�question�was�really�to�ask�you�how�you�

manage�communication�with�the�Travellers�resident�on�your�sites.��I�know�that�some�local�authorities�have�a�

dedicated�local�Gypsies�and�Traveller�officer�who�manages�the�communication�between�the�local�authority�and�

the�residents.��Is�that�the�way�that�the�three�local�authorities�here�manage�it�or�is�there�some�other�way?�

�

Bill�Forrester�(Head�of�Gypsy�&�Traveller�Unit,�Kent�County�Council):��We�have�communication,�but�

people�on�our�sites�have�the�mobile�numbers�of�the�site�managers.��We�have�contact�on�a�daily�or�hourly�basis�

directly�with�Travellers,�including�applicants�and�including�other�people�onsite.��There�are�no�communication�

issues.��In�fact,�the�only�communication�issue�is�trying�to�deal�with�people�on�leave�and�people�making�calls�

and�getting�voicemails�and�so�on�and�advising�people�to�come�back�through�the�contact�centre�number�for�the�

authority.��

�

A�lot�of�people�in�our�authority�are�people�on�the�front�of�our�reception�area�in�County�Hall�and�all�sorts.��We�

have�developed�together�welcoming�approaches�to�people,�even�to�people�in�some�distress�and�people�coming�

into�the�council�with�enormous�homelessness�issues.��Some�of�that�is�quite�difficult.��It�is�in�order�to�prevent�

the�difficulties�and�the�tensions�or�even�the�prejudices�arising.��We�work�very�hard�to�make�sure�that�does�not�

happen.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Just�finally�then�to�Rob�[McCartney]�or�Gill,�do�either�of�your�authorities�have�a�

dedicated�Gypsies�and�Travellers�officer�who�handles�communication�or�do�you�do�it�via�the�wider�housing�

team?�

�

Gill�Slater�(Policy�Planner,�London�Borough�of�Bromley):��We�have�a�site�liaison�officer�who�is�embedded�

within�the�housing�team.��Of�late�he�has�had�to�take�on�more�housing�responsibilities�as�well,�but�he�is�onsite�

once�a�week�without�fail,�if�not�more.��Two�sites�they�are.��The�private�sites�come�in�regularly�to�the�planning�

department�because�they�are�very�keen�to�see�what�is�happening�and�knowing�their�temporary�permissions�are�

expiring�and�where�we�are�with�the�local�planning.��They�come�directly�to�me�and�they�are�on�the�phone�

frequently�to�find�out�how�things�are�progressing�and�what�the�current�situation�is.��The�private�sites�I�am�in�

contact�with.��Added�to�that,�of�course,�is�the�biannual�caravan�camp�which�the�liaison�officer�and�I�do�

together.��Then�I�get�to�see�both�sites�and�I�introduce�him�to�the�private�sites.���

�

Rob�McCartney�(Head�of�Housing�Support,�Leeds�City�Council):��We�have�a�dedicated�Gypsy�and�

Traveller�team.��They�have�recently�been�integrated.��They�are�keeping�their�specialist�role�but�they�have�been�

integrated�into�a�home�visiting�housing�needs�assessment�team�simply�to�maintain�that�expertise�and�also�to�

put�some�more�resources�towards�the�Gypsy�and�Traveller�service�as�well.��Yes,�there�is�a�dedicated�resource.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much.��Thank�you�to�everyone�who�contributed�from�the�floor�

and�came�along.��Thank�you�to�our�panellists�as�well.��It�is�clear�that�we�do�need�to�improve�how�we�

accommodate�our�Gypsy�and�Traveller�community�here�in�London.��We�have�heard�some�examples�of�good�

practice.��It�is�an�important�part�of�London�as�a�diverse�multicultural�city�and�we�should�not�forget�that.�

�

There�are�two�reflections�from�me�that�came�from�the�floor�at�the�start.��One�is�the�need�for�calm�dialogue.��

We�have�had�a�calm�dialogue�today�and�that�has�been�extremely�helpful.��I�am�also�very�hopeful�after�hearing�

about�the�scrutiny�exercise�that�Leeds�City�Council�took�on�and�how�that�directly�led�to�some�good�clear�

Page 45



 

�

recommendations�and�some�very�clear�improvements�which�have�obviously�improved�things�in�the�city�of�

Leeds.��Hopefully�we�can�learn�from�that.��Thank�you�to�everyone�who�has�taken�part�today.�

�

�

Page 46



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Summary
List
of
Actions�


Report
to:
 Housing
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
11
November
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�
 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Housing�Committee.�




2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
outstanding
actions
arising
from
previous
meetings
of
the


Committee.








Actions
Arising
from
the
Meeting
of
16
October
2014


Minute


Number


Topic
 Status
 For
action
by


13.








Gypsy
and
Traveller
Site
Provision
in
London


Gill�Slater�committed�to�provide�the�criteria�used�by�the�

London�Borough�of�Bromley�to�determine�waiting�list�

priority�order�for�traveller�pitches.�




In�progress.





�

�

Gill�Slater,�

LB�Bromley�






Agenda Item 4

Page 47



        

Actions
Arising
from
the
Meeting
of
10
July
2014


Minute


Number


Topic
 Status
 For
action
by


5.











Resident
Perspectives
on
the
Regeneration
of


London's
Social
Housing
Estates


Lucy�Musgrave�agreed�to�provide�the�Committee�with�

the�following�additional�information:�

• Examples�of�best�practice�of�where�public�and�
resident�intervention�has�resulted�in�improvements�

on�estates�in�terms�of�public�safety,�and�any�other�

examples�of�best�practice�involving�community�

participation�in�housing�refurbishment;�

• Examples�of�best�practice�of�intensifying�housing�
estates�without�demolishing�housing�units;�and��

• Further�information�on�the�London�Borough�of�
Camden’s�EC1�New�Deal.�

�




In�progress.


�

�

�

Lucy�Musgrave,�

Publica�





3.
 Legal
Implications




3.1��� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�





4.
 Financial
Implications

�

4.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�





�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

�
None�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� David�Pealing,�Committee�Officer�

Telephone:� 020�7983�5525�

Email:� david.pealing@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 48



 

                                                                    

�

 

Subject:	London	Housing	Strategy	
�

Report	to:	 Housing	Committee		
	
Report	of:		Executive	Director	of	Secretariat�
	

Date:	11	November	2014	

This	report	will	be	considered	in	public�
�
	
	
1 Summary	
	
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�background�for�the�Committee’s�discussion�of�the�London�Housing�Strategy.��

�

�

2	 Recommendation	
	
2.1 That	the	Committee	notes	the	report	as	background	to	putting	questions	to	invited	

guests	on	the	London	Housing	Strategy.		

	

	

3	 Background	
�

3.1� Following�consultation,�the�Mayor�published�a�new�London�Housing�Strategy�in�April�2014.1��The�

Strategy�contained�outline�proposals�for�a�range�of�significant�initiatives,�notably�seeking�to�increase�

the�supply�of�new�homes�in�London�and�to�improve�quality�standards�in�the�private�rental�sector.��

Six�months�on,�many�of�these�proposals�have�been�taken�forward.��Notably:�

• The�London�Rental�Standard�was�launched�in�May�2014�with�the�aim�of�raising�professional�

standards�in�the�private�rented�sector,�by�promoting�longer�tenancies�and�tackling�rogue�

landlords;�and�

• The�deadline�for�bids�for�the�Housing�Zone�designation�passed�on�30�September�2014�and�an�

announcement�on�successful�bids�is�expected�in�November,�although�early�bids�have�been�

following�a�fast-track�timetable.��The�Mayor�is�combining�£200m�of�his�housing�funding�with�

match-funding�from�the�Treasury�to�try�to�unlock�or�accelerate�housing�supply.���

�

�

4	 Issues	for	Consideration	
�

4.1 The�Committee�may�wish�to�examine�progress�on�the�Housing�Zones�and�the�London�Rental�

Standard,�as�well�as�follow�up�on�recommendations�from�a�number�of�Committee’s�recent�reports�

and�meetings,�which�are�particularly�relevant�to�delivery�of�the�Housing�Strategy.��

�

4.2 The�Committee�published�its�report�Rent�reform:�Making�London’s�private�rental�market�fit�for��

                                                 
1�Housing�in�London,�GLA,�April�2014�

Agenda Item 5

Page 49



        

�

 

purpose�in�June�2013.2��The�report�included�recommendations�on�quality,�availability,�affordability�

of�accommodation�as�well�as�extending�length�of�tenancies,�behavior�of�landlords,�and�empowering�

of�private�rented�sector�tenants.�
�

4.3 The�London�Housing�Strategy�identifies�that�there�is�a�need�to�promote�new�entrants�into�London’s�

house�building�market.�Like�the�Mayor,�the�Committee�is�concerned�that�a�small�number�of�large�
developers�dominate�the�house�building�industry�in�London.��In�July�2014,�the�Committee�called�on�

the�Mayor�to�encourage�diversity�in�London’s�house�building�industry,�in�particular,�by�facilitating�

access�to�surplus�public�land�for�new�and�small�developers.3��The�Mayor’s�response�to�the�Committee�
agreed�with�the�need�to�support�small�and�new�developers,�but�did�not�agree�with�the�Committee’s�

proposed�actions,�such�as�parceling�surplus�public�land�into�smaller�sites�and�developing�a�

framework�to�facilitate�their�involvement.4�
�

4.4 In�2013,�the�Committee�heard�from�a�number�of�experts�on�the�subject�of�overcrowding�and�

under-occupation�in�London’s�homes.�The�Committee�therefore�welcomes�the�increased�attention�
on�this�issue�in�the�April�draft�of�the�Housing�Strategy,�including�commitments�to�review�and�

promote�good�practice�in�addressing�overcrowding�and�plans�to�expand�the�Housing�Moves�and�

Seaside�and�Country�schemes.��

	
4.5� A�panel�of�guests�has�been�invited�to�discuss�these�issues�with�the�Committee,�including:�

• Jamie�Ratcliff,�Assistant�Director�–�Programme,�Policy�and�Services,�Housing�and�Land,�

Greater�London�Authority;�and�

• Representatives�of�other�external�organisations,�details�of�whom�were�being�finalised�at�the�

time�the�agenda�goes�to�press.�

 

 

5 Legal	Implications	
�

5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�is�this�report.��

�

�

6 Financial	Implications	
�

6.1� There�are�no�direct�GLA�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.���

�

��� �

List	of	appendices	to	this	report:	None�

�

Local	Government	(Access	to	Information)	Act	1985		
List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:�������������Simon�Shaw,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�6542�

E-mail:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk��

�

                                                 
2�Rent�Reform:�Making�the�Private�Rented�Sector�Fit�for�Purpose�(June�2013)�
3�Letter�to�the�Mayor�–�London�Development�Panel�and�Diversity�in�the�House�building�Industry�(July�2014)�
4�Response�from�the�Mayor�-�London�Development�Panel�and�Diversity�in�the�House�building�Industry�(September�2014)�

Page 50



 

                                                                    

�

 

Subject:	Affordable	Home	Ownership	in	London	
�

Report	to:	 Housing	Committee		
	
Report	of:		Executive	Director	of	Secretariat�
	

Date:	11	November	2014	

This	report	will	be	considered	in	public�
�
	
	
1 Summary	
	
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�proposed�scope�for�the�Housing�Committee’s�review�into�affordable�home�

ownership�in�London.��

�

�

2	 Recommendations	
	
2.1 That	the	Committee	notes	the	broad	scope	for	its	review	of	affordable	home	ownership	in	

London	as	outlined	at	paragraphs	4.2	to	4.4	of	this	report;	and		

	

2.2	 That	the	Committee	delegates	authority	to	the	Chair,	in	consultation	with	party	Group	

Lead	Members,	to	agree	the	final	scoping	paper	and	terms	of	reference	for	the	

investigation	into	affordable	home	ownership	in	London	in	advance	of	the	December	

meeting	of	the	Committee.		

	

	

3	 Background	
�

3.1� Rising�house�prices�make�home�ownership�increasingly�unaffordable�for�many�Londoners.��House�

prices�in�London�are�increasing�faster�than�in�any�other�part�of�the�country:�recent�figures�put�

London’s�growth�at�18.1�per�cent,�in�comparison�to�9�per�cent�nationally.1��This�rapid�growth�has�

driven�the�average�house�price�to�a�record�£514,000�in�July�of�this�year.�2��As�a�result,�80�per�cent�of�

the�new�build�sales�market�is�affordable�to�only�20�per�cent�of�working�households�in�London,�a�

situation�which�is�likely�to�continue�if�low�wage�growth�becomes�the�norm�over�the�medium�to�long�

term.3�

�

3.2� Eligibility�in�London�for�affordable�housing�is�set�at�a�gross�household�income�of�no�more�than�

£66,000�per�annum�for�a�one�or�two�bedroom�home,�or�no�more�than�£80,000�per�annum�when�for�

a�family�sized�home�(three�or�more�bedrooms).��Priority�will�be�given�to�housing�association�and�

council�tenants,�and�armed�forces�personnel.4��The�Mayor�has�also�identified�low�income�households�

where�one�or�two�people�are�working�as�deserving�of�particular�support�during�his�second�term,�in�

                                                 
1�September�2014�-�Hometrack�House�Price�Cities�Index�
2�London�Housing�Market�Report,�Greater�London�Authority�
3�Homes�for�London:�London�Housing�Strategy�2014,�The�Mayor�of�London,�page�5 
4�Homes�for�Working�Londoners,�The�Mayor�of�London,�page�9�

Agenda Item 6

Page 51



        

�

 

recognition�of�the�difficulty�that�this�group�has�in�finding�affordable�housing�on�the�open�market�or�

within�private�rented�accommodation.���

� �

�

4	 Issues	for	Consideration	
�

4.1 The�Mayor�has�made�increasing�the�level�of�affordable�home�ownerships�a�key�priority�in�his�

Housing�Strategy.��The�Strategy�outlines�several�policies�which�aim�to�make�the�shared�ownership�

market�function�more�like�the�mainstream�housing�market5:�

• Using�the�First�Steps�programme�to�assist�50,000�Londoners�to�gain�a�foothold�on�the�

property�ladder�by�2016;�

• Introducing�a�“flexible�home�ownership�product”�which�decouples�a�property�from�a�specific�

financial�package,�potentially�allowing�first�time�buyers�more�freedom�to�choose�the�

financing�which�suits�their�budget�best;�

• Opening�up�all�First�Steps�homes�funded�by�the�GLA�to�Londoners�regardless�of�where�they�

live�in�the�city�if�there�is�insufficient�local�demand�after�a�specified�time�period;�and�

• On�15�February�2013,�the�Mayor�unveiled�the�first�phase�of�up�to�£100�million�to�stimulate�

new�supply�and�new�products.�The�first�phase�funding�will�see�27�organisations�sharing�

£78�million�to�build�3,000�new�homes�across�London,�supporting�around�6,000�jobs�in�

construction.6�

�

4.2� This�investigation�will�examine�the�current�state�of�affordable�home�ownership�in�London,�looking�in�

particular�at�who�are�the�main�beneficiaries�of�current�affordable�home�ownership�policies�from�the�

Mayor�and�boroughs,�what�the�effect�of�continuing�growth�in�house�prices�has�on�affordable�home�

ownership�and�how�successful�it�is�in�moving�Londoners�to�full�home�ownership.��It�will�also�examine�

alternative�routes�to�affordable�home�ownership�in�London.�

�

4.3� Members�could�explore�if�the�relatively�high�eligibility�thresholds�for�affordable�housing�are�correct,�

the�appropriateness�of�the�Mayor’s�specific�target�group�including�the�challenges�that�this�group�

faces�in�accessing�affordable�home�ownership,�and�the�sustainability�of�policies�in�the�face�of�

continuing�house�price�increases.��

�

4.4� Finally,�the�Committee�may�also�look�to�investigate�alternatives�to�the�Mayor’s�focus�on�shared�

ownership�as�a�vehicle�to�increase�the�number�of�low�and�middle�income�Londoners�owning�

property.��These�include�examining�housing�co-operatives,�housing�mutuals,�and�‘naked�house’�

initiatives.�

� �

Meetings	

4.5� It�is�proposed�that�the�December�meeting�will�focus�mainly�on�examining�the�current�state�of�

affordable�home�ownership�in�London,�including�a�review�of�the�Mayor’s�flagship�First�Steps�

programme.�

�

                                                 
5�Information�taken�from�Homes�for�London:�London�Housing�Strategy,�The�Mayor�of�London,�pages��26�-�29�
6�Home�for�Working�Londoner’s�Progress�Report,�March�2013 

Page 52



        

�

 

4.6� It�is�proposed�that�the�January�meeting�will�tackle�how�the�secondary�market�can�be�improved�for�

affordable�homes�as�well�as�alternatives�to�increasing�the�number�of�shared�ownership�homes�in�

London.�

�

�

5 Legal	Implications	
�

5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�is�this�report.��

�

�

6	 Financial	Implications	
�

6.1� There�are�no�direct�GLA�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.���

�

�

��� �

List	of	appendices	to	this	report:	None�

�

�

Local	Government	(Access	to	Information)	Act	1985		
List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:�������������Ian�O’Sullivan,�Assistant�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�6540�

E-mail:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                  

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk

 

Subject:�Housing
Committee
Work
Programme


Report
to:
 Housing
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public
 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�updates�the�proposed�work�programme�for�the�Committee�d

year.�





2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
its








3.
 Background





3.1 In�order�for�relevant�preparatory�work�to�be�undertaken,�Members�

next�project�they�wish�to�investigate�

�

3.2 Members�will�receive�a�report�at�each�Committee�meeting�on�the�progress�of�the�projects�agr

the�basis�for�the�work�programme.��Additional�projec

time�to�time�reflecting�the�need�for�the�Committee�to�respond�to�tasks�such�as�consultations�or�

other�events�as�necessary.��

�

Criteria
for
topic
selection

3.3� The�criteria�for�selecting�topics�are�some

�

1) Addresses�a�strategic�challenge�relating�to�housing�in�London,�with�a�particular�emphasis�on:�

• developing�and�maintaining�sustainable�communities

• reducing�inequalities�and�offering�opportunities�to�all�Londoners

�

2) Relates�to�the�responsibilities�and�priorities�of�the�Mayor�and�GLA�Group

�

3) Provides�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�influence�policy�

�

4) Provides�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�add�valu

new�perspectives�to�the�debate.

                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Housing
Committee
Work
Programme

Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat Date:
1



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�

This�report�updates�the�proposed�work�programme�for�the�Committee�during�the�

notes
its
work
programme.


In�order�for�relevant�preparatory�work�to�be�undertaken,�Members�need�to�

they�wish�to�investigate�later�in�the�Assembly�year.�

Members�will�receive�a�report�at�each�Committee�meeting�on�the�progress�of�the�projects�agr

the�basis�for�the�work�programme.��Additional�projects�will�be�included�in�the�work�

time�to�time�reflecting�the�need�for�the�Committee�to�respond�to�tasks�such�as�consultations�or�

selection


The�criteria�for�selecting�topics�are�some,�or�all,�of�the�following:�That�the�topic

Addresses�a�strategic�challenge�relating�to�housing�in�London,�with�a�particular�emphasis�on:�

developing�and�maintaining�sustainable�communities�

nequalities�and�offering�opportunities�to�all�Londoners

Relates�to�the�responsibilities�and�priorities�of�the�Mayor�and�GLA�Group

Provides�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�influence�policy�;�and�

Provides�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�add�value�by�bringing�significant�new�evidence�or�

new�perspectives�to�the�debate.�

 

Housing
Committee
Work
Programme�

11
November
2014�

uring�the�2014/15�Assembly�

need�to�agree�the�subject�of�the�

Members�will�receive�a�report�at�each�Committee�meeting�on�the�progress�of�the�projects�agreed�as�

ts�will�be�included�in�the�work�programme�from�

time�to�time�reflecting�the�need�for�the�Committee�to�respond�to�tasks�such�as�consultations�or�

That�the�topic�

Addresses�a�strategic�challenge�relating�to�housing�in�London,�with�a�particular�emphasis�on:��

nequalities�and�offering�opportunities�to�all�Londoners;�

Relates�to�the�responsibilities�and�priorities�of�the�Mayor�and�GLA�Group;�

e�by�bringing�significant�new�evidence�or�

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



        

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

4.1 The�Committee�has�agreed�its�next�topic�for�investigation:�Improving�the�Affordability�of�Home�

Ownership.��The�Committee’s�December�and�January�meetings�will�be�devoted�to�this�investigation.�

�

4.2� The�main�business�topics�for�two�meeting�slots�remain�to�be�agreed�during�this�municipal�year�

(Tuesday�10�February�and�Tuesday�17�March�2015).��The�dates�may�be�used�for�formal�Committee�

meetings,�informal�meetings,�site�visits�or�other�activities.��The�work�programme�also�provides�for�

the�Committee�to�respond�to�any�matters�that�arise�at�short�notice.   

�

4.3� Other�topics�remaining�on�the�Committee’s�long�list�include:�

• Affordable
homes
numbers�–�the�Committee�will�wish�to�keep�the�number�of�affordable�
homes�built�in�London�under�review;�

• Lettings
agencies�–�following�up�on�the�Committee's�work�last�year�on�the�private�rented�
sector,�assessing�the�effectiveness�of�different�models�for�regulating�lettings�agencies�and�

including�consideration�of�social�lettings�agencies;�

• Student
housing�–�looking�at�build�quality�and�prices�of�new�student�accommodation�in�
London;�and�

• Rent
controls�–�also�following�up�work�from�the�Committee’s�Private�Rented�Sector�report�
published�in�2013,�considering�the�range�of�mechanisms�applied�in�Europe�and�whether�or�how�

they�might�work�in�London.�

�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�

�

6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

None�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:��None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Lorraine�Ford,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4394�

Email:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 56


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	03a - Appendix 1 - Transcript of discussion with public from the floor
	03b - Appendix 2 - Transcript of discussion with invited panellists

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 London Housing Strategy
	6 Affordable Home Ownership in London
	7 Housing Committee Work Programme

